COMPUTER-ASSISTED WRITING IN ADULT EDUCATION SETTINGS

CENTRE FOR NEWFOUNDLAND STUDIES

TOTAL OF 10 PAGES ONLY MAY BE XEROXED

(Without Author's Permission)

JOAN PAULINE MARCHE



COMPUTER-ASSISTED WRITING IN ADULT EDUCATION SETTINGS

BY



Joan Pauline Marche, B.A., B.Ed.

A thesis submitted to the School of Graduate

Studies in partial fulfillment of the
requirements for the degree of

Master of Education

Department of Curriculum and Instruction

Faculty of Education

Memorial University of Newfoundland

July -1986 "

Permission has been granted to the National Library of Canada to microfilm this thesis and to lend or sell copies of the film.

The author (copyright owner) has reserved other publication rights, and neither the thesis nor extensive extracts from it may be printed or otherwise reproduced without his/her written permission.

L'autorisation a été accordée à la Bibliothèque nationale du Canada de microfilmer cette thèse et de prêter ou de vendre des exemplaires du film.

L'auteur (titulaire du droit d'auteur) se réserve les autres droits de publication; ni la thèse ni de longs extraits de celle-ci ne doivent têtre imprimés ou autrement reproduits sans son autorisation écrite.

ISBN 0-315-33617-X.

ABSTRACT

The current technological revolution has produced the need to find more efficient ways of recording and storing information. The latest technological advancement for the writer is the computer. This new medium permits the writer to get words into print quickly and easily while facilitating more effective revision.

This researcher surveyed adult educators across Canada to determine if and how the computer is being used as a writing tool in adult education classes. The data for the study was collected by means of mailed questionnaires. Responses were tabulated from both users and non-users of the computer. Although only 29% of those responding were using computers in their writing classes, the results were positive. It was reported that adults generally enjoy using the computer and that the ease of revision which the computer allowed actually improved both the students' writing and their attitude toward writing.

Provided in this study is a 16 week module for adult -learners. Offered in this module are writing exercises
based on information gathered from the survey and on ideas
from related literature on the subject.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This writer wishes to express her gratitude to a friend and supervisor, Dr. Frank Wolfe, for his understanding, encouragement, and competent guidance during the course of this study.

Appreciation is expressed to Dr. M. Kennedy and Dr. G. Fizzard who took time from their busy schedules to discuss this project and offer assistance.

This writer wishes to express special thanks to her family, especially her sister Ellen, whose support and encouragement helped make this study possible.

Special thanks is expressed to those who demonstrated true friendship during the past year, especially Cyril, Helen, Maxine, Reg, Joyce and the Governor.

Finally, this writer wishes to express deep appreciation to her husband Pat and children Pamela and Ian, without whose love, patience and understanding this thesis would never have been completed.

Table of Contents

1		Page
Acknowledgements		· iv
List of Tables		xi
Chapter 1	1	1.
Introduction		1.
History of Writing	1 93	ī
Need for Computer-Assisted Writing Programs		4
The Components of the Comp	outer .	6.
Software		7
The Writing Centre		11
. Stages of Writing		~12
Prewriting		13
Writing	*	. 13
Revising	,	14 .
. Editing		14
Writing and Proofread	ling	. 15
Sharing and Publishin	ig	15
Chapter 2 Review of Related Li	terature	. 17
Tabanduaki an	-	17

Research		17
Advantages of Using Computers in Writing		27
The Word Processor	•	27
Ease of Revision		28
Writing as a Comparison Process	`	31
Peer Collaboration		33
Computer as a Motivator	enter ""	34
-Fluidity of Text		35
Struggle with Handwriting	۵.	35
Change in Attitude towards Writing		37
Advantages for Teachers	`	38
Problems with Using the Computer		40
, Cost		40
Student Access		41
Lack of Faculty Awareness .	_	42
Lack of Typing Skills		42
Learning the Commands		43
Tendency Toward Surface Correction		44
Conclusion		44
Chapter 3 Purpose of the Study		46
Significance		47

Design of the Study	. 48
The Survey Instrument	48
Pilot Study	49
The Sample	50
Limitations	51
Definition of Terms	52
Adult	52
Computer	53
Word Processor	53
Adult Basic Education	53,
Vocational	53
Post-secondary -	53
Junior College 🕳	54
Need for the Study	54
Analysis of the Data	55
Computer Users	- 55
Adult Educator Opinions	-59
Results for Individual Statements	61
Computer Non-Users	- 63
Results for Individual Statements	65
Summary	67
Conclusion	68

Chapter 4	on Ugi	ale for ng the (Proces	Computer	ing Modu in the		70
Chapter 5	Behavio Module	oral Ob	jectives	for the		75
Chapter 6	for a ?		Module		uter-	82
Introduc	tion		•		- 1	82
The Comp	puter				•	84
Week	I.	Lesson	1.		ļ	84
- Week	ı.	Lesson	2.			85
Week	I.	Lesson	3.			86
Week	II	Lesson	4.		1	86
Week	II.	Ļesson	5.		- 1	87
Week	II.	Lesson	6. °		a	88
Writing	Activi4	ies				89
Week	III.	Lesson	7.	•	!	90
- Week	III:	Lesson	8.		!	90
Week	III.	Lesson	9.		. !	91
Week	IV.	Lesson	10.	•	-	91
Week	ıv.	Lesson	11.	_		92
Week	īv.	Lesson	12.		<u> </u>	93
Week	v.	Lesson	13.		ا ا	93

	Week	v.	Lesson	14.			94
	Week	v.	Lesson	15.			94
	We.êk	VI.	Lesson	16.	4		94
	Week	VI.	Lesson	17 -		•	95
	Week	vi.	Lesson	18.			95 ,
	Week	VIĮ.	Lesson	19.		٠.	96
	Week	vII.	Lesson	20.	/	1	96
	Week	VII.	Lesson	21.	· /	• •	96
	Week	VIII.	Lesson	22.			97
	Week	VIII.	Lesson	23.	<i>/</i> ·		97
	Week	VIII.	Lesson	24.			98
	Week	IX.	Lesson	25/-			98
	Week	ıx.	Lesson	26.		/	98
	Week	IX.	Lesson	26.		-	9'8
	Week	IX.	Lesson	27.	, *		99
	Week	x.	Lesson	28.			99
	Week	x.	Lesson	29.			99
	Week	x. 1./	Lesson	30.		` <u>'</u> 1	.00
•	Week	xI.	Lesson	31.		1	.00
	Week	xī/.	Lesson	32.		1	.00
	Week	XI.	Lesson	33	•	_1	.01
	Week	XII.	Lesson	34.	• •	1	.01
	,						

Week 2	III.	Lesson 35.			101 -
Week >	III.	Lesson 36.			101
. Week >	III.	Lesson 37.	,		102
- Week >	iii.	Lesson 38.			102
Week 2	III.	Lesson 39.	-67		103
Week 3	IV.	Lesson 40	and the second		103
Week 2	IV.	Lesson 41.			104
Week 2	IV.	Lesson 42.	•		104
Week 2	W.	Lesson 43.		0	104
Week 2	v.	Lesson 44.			104
Week 2	v.	Lesson 45.			104
Week 2	VI.	Lesson 46.	<u>.</u>		105
Week 3	WI.	Lesson 47.			105
Week-)	WI.	Lesson 48.		•	105
Bibliògra	phy	;			107
Appendice	g !				
A. Su	rvey	Instrument			125
Als ac	1415	inl Commonte		-	122

List of Tables

			Page.
Table	I	· Type of Institution	51
Table	II .	Levels Taught	56
Table.	TII	Size of Class(es)	56
Table	IV	Average Hours per Week	57.
Table	V.	Student/Computer Ratio	58
Table	.VI	Computer Uses	59
Table	VII	Results for Individual Statements	62
Table	VIII	Levels Taught	63
Table	IX	Familiarity with Computers	64
Table	x ,	Results for Individuals Statements	66
Table	XI .	Reasons for Non-Use of Computers	67

CHAPTER 1

Introduction

Reading maketh a full man, Conference a remain, and Writing an exact man.

(Francis Bacon)

System of human intercommunication by means of conventional marks (Gelb, 1969, p.12). Historically, writing has taken many forms. Primitive man drew symbols on cave walls. Modern man uses the lighted dots on a cathode ray tube (C.R.T.) screen, more simply known as the computer, to aid in the writing process.

A brief look at a history of writing as outlined by Tuchudi and Tuchudi (1984) reveals much of the evolutionary nature of the writing process.

History of Writing

In his earliest attempts at communicating visually, primitive man used drawings to transmit his ideas. In the intervening years, the drawings lost their

clear definition and were modified and changed into simpler forms. Somewhere around 3000-2000 B.C., these ideograms became more widely used. These markings were symbols in which a rough sketch represented not just a single object but several related ideas. For example, a picture of the sun might also mean day, good weather, or the east.

The next stage in the development of wfiting, the cureiform system, occurred in Sumeria around 3500° B.C. At this time, people used marks made by pressing a wedge-shaped stylus or marking tool into wet clay. These symbols came to represent specific words in the spoken language.

A further important development took place in Phoenicia. The Phoenicians adapted earlier writing systems, using marks to represent not whole words, but individual sounds in their language. Through letter symbols, the Phoenicians could use 22 symbols in place of thousands of pictures.

The modification of the alphabet to the point at which we can recognize the letters came through the creeks and Romans. The Greeks borrowed the Phoenician alphabet, adopted 19 of these symbols and added some of their

own to create a 24 letter alphabet. The Romans then took that basic system of alphabet writing and carried it through their part of the world as the written form of their language, Latin.

The technology of writing has also steadily evolved. For the caveman, writing on walls meant using charcoal and paints laboriously created from materials in his immediate environment. Not only was the process a slow one, but written ideas were rooted to the cave walls. In the cuneiform system, printing on a clay tablet with a stylus remained very slow and cumbersome. In Egypt, written language was used only by priests who had access to the materials and the slave labor to create writing. This writing was carved in stone, which itself allowed little room for error. Later, the Egyptians developed papyrus, parchment, and vellum, which were better and lighter writing materials. Then, about the first century A.D., the Chinese developed paper.

With the development of pencil and paper, writing became easier, faster, and more easily shared. However, the physical act of writing by hand was still a tedious

chore for many people. The invention of the typewriter eliminated the laborious task of writing by hand, made the printed word more legible, and provided the advantage of speed in getting words on paper.

The current technological revolution has produced the need to find yet more efficient ways of recording, storing and making available information. Thus, the latest technological advancement for the writer is the computer. This new medium not only allows the writer to get words into print quickly and easily, it also facilitates more effective revisions, thereby removing the necessity of rewriting the entire text when changes are to be made in the original writing.

Need for Computer-Assisted Writing Programs

This thesis focuses on the use of the computer in the teaching of writing. Although the concept is still relatively new in the field of adult education, a number of community colleges across Canada are trying this new medium in their writing classes and are achieving positive results. A survey conducted by this researcher shows that computer users and non-users alike felt that the computer can be a useful tool in teaching adults to

write. Adult educators who are using the computer as a writing tool report that learners generally enjoy the writing process and that the quality of students' work improves. The ease of revision which the computer allows has eased the reluctance of learners to rewrite their work and has made them more willing participants within the instructional process.

A review of the literature on the use of computers in writing programs will show that this new technology has been used effectively as an aid in adult writing programs. At present, neither the community college nor the vocational schools in Newfoundland have a teaching module in place which focuses specifically on computer-assisted writing. Since we are preparing students for a technological society, and since computers in adult writing classes have proven to be both motivating and effective, this researcher feels that the need exists for the installation of such a program.

The following section will introduce the technological requirements essential to the incorporation of a new process for the instruction of writing within the context of the adult education system.

The Components of the Computer System

A computer system requires several basic components.

Each system must contain:

- 1. the computer itself,
- 2. a device to transmit information and commands to the computer (although a cassette can be used, the most common device is the keyboard),
- 3. a device known as a disk drive to read and record information stored on disks,
- 4. some means_of storing information a disk or a cassette.
- 5. a monitor (T.V. screen) to display the material being processed,
- 6. a printer which will give a copy of the written work. This copy is known as a hardcopy. For rough drafts, a dot matrix printer will serve the purpose. However, a letter quality printer is necessary for final drafts.

Those components which make up the computer system are known as the hardware.

The type of system most useful for word processing and most useful for inexperienced writers is a micro-

computer system. This type of system can stand alone; that is, it is not connected with a central computer housed in another location. This type of system is very reliable, and it is relatively cheap to install. Software packages are readily available, either from the system's manufacturer or from various software firms.

Software .

"Software" is a collective term for the sets of instructions that tell the hardware what to do. Individual sets of instructions are called "Programs" (Fluegelman & Hewes, 1983, p.28).

The software package which is central to writing on the computer is the word processing program. Word processing software allows written communication of all sorts to be easily generated, proofread, printed, and revised. No longer is it necessary to retype or rewrite many pages of a manuscript. Many working hours which would normally be devoted to rewrites can be saved.

For those who are unfamiliar with the system, a description of word-processing capabilities is warranted. Bitter: and Camuse (1984) outline the capabilities of such a program.

The computer screen serves as a blank sheet of paper, and the text is typed, using the computer keyboard. Insertion and deletion of characters, words, lines, and even paragraphs can be done with the touch of one or two keys. This means that mistakes can be very easily corrected.

The word wrap feature allows the writer to enter long paragraphs without ever pressing the return key. The computer makes certain that no word exceeds the right-hand margin, automatically bringing words that are too lengthy down to the next line. No attention need be paid to margin limitations when entering text. This in itself is a time saver.

At intervals, and after a piece of writing has been completely entered, the user saves his/her writing by using a special command. This means that the work will be saved on a storage disk and can be recalled whenever needed. Before saving a piece of work it is necessary to give the file a name, for identification and recall purposes.

Now, let's assume that a student has entered his/her composition, saved it on a disk, and received a printed copy of his/her first draft. The student proofreads

and wishes to make revisions. This is where a word-processing program can make a tremendous difference; no laborious rewriting is required.

By using a simple command, the writer calls his/her piece of writing from the storage disk, and it is displayed on the computer screen ready for revisions. The writer is now free to make deletions, insertions, paragraph-moves and surface corrections. The word wrap feature insures that adding or deleting sentences and words will not interfere with correct paragraph and margin format after revisions are completed. In addition, titles can be automatically centered. When all changes have been made, the user can save his/her work and print the revised manuscript.

Students will find that use of word processing software can greatly add to their productivity and to the quality of the final draft of writing.

There are three other software packages that are useful to student writers. One such program is a spelling checker which allows the student to compare the words. in his/her written composition with the program's dictionary. Any word that does not conform exactly

and shown to the student on the screen. The student then has the option of letting the word remain as is or correcting it and saving the corrected version.

A dictionary program can improve a student's writing in two ways:

First, it catches typos and lets the student concentrate on getting the words down without stopping to consult a dictionary every few minutes. Secondly, the program displays every word it doesn't recognize. Since the student has to look up and correct each misspelled word, he may eventually learn the correct spelling.

(Fluegelman and Hewes, 1983, p. 133)

As well as the Spelling Checker, there is also available a thesaurus on disk which lists synonyms for many common words.

Another program which can contribute to better writing is a grammar-check program. A variety of

programs are available which check the students' writing for structural errors and highlight these mistakes for the student. Because errors are only located by the computer and not corrected, individuals have a guided learning experience of editing and completing a grammatical-ly correct composition.

The Writing Centre

An ideal situation in any writing centre would be to have one computer per student. However, this would be a costly venture and most schools would be unable to provide such facilities. Since students in the writing centre may sometimes work in pairs, and since not all students will be using the computers at the same time, a class of 20 could easily be accommodated in a writing centre equipped with:

- a) a minimum of 10 microcomputers,
- b) one large monitor for demonstration purposes,
- a minimum of one high speed, dot matrix printer and one letter quality printer,
- d) a good range of software selected with students' needs in mind.

Timetabling for the use of the writing centre should be structured to accommodate designated periods of

instruction and practice for students in writing courses.

The emphasis here would be on editing and revising.

During unassigned periods and after school hours, the writing centre could be utilized by students who wish to do extra work or to complete assignment on the computer.

Stages of Writing

In order to understand how the computer can facilitate the writing process, it is necessary to explain the stages of writing and show how they are compatible with the technology. West, Bailey and Wood (1981), outline the steps in the writing process as follows:

- prewriting,
- 2. writing,
- revising,
- 4. editing,
- 5. writing and proofreading final copy,
- 6. sharing and publishing (pp. 18-21).

All stages of writing still occur when writing is done on the computer. However, the computer changes the way each step in handled, especially the revising, editing, and rewriting stages.

Prewriting

During the prewriting stage, the student spends a Considerable amount of time thinking about what he/shewants to write. Brainstorming, listing, freewriting, dreaming, and talking with friends are all strategies which are used to find ideas (Crist, W., 1984; Schwartz, L., 1983). This stage of writing is perhaps done as easily by pen and paper as with a computer. However, according to Myers (1986), there are software programs available that present a series of questions to be answered which will assist writers in the initial stages of writing.

Writing

During this stage, the writer uses the ideas generated in the prewriting stage to write a rough draft. The computer can be helpful at this stage. The student no longer worries about making mistakes, so he/she can get ideas out on the screen quickly (Loheyde, 1984; Gula, 1983). The computer also alleviates the physical struggle and the pain of cramped fingers which some students experience (Myers, 1986; Bean, 1983). This makes the act of writing easier.

Revising

It is at this stage of the writing process that the computer is most useful. When writing by hand, the penalty for error correction, rearrangement, and substitutions, is recopying. Therefore, most students, though aware that mistakes exist, will risk a lower grade and submit their first draft rather than recopy a written assignment. The word processor eliminates the sense of punishment in making extensive changes. Additions, deletions, substitutions can be done with the touch of a key or two. Sentences or whole paragraphs can be rearranged without the worry of rewriting (Smye, 1984; Loheyde, 1984; Levin, 1984).

Editing

During this stage, the student is concerned with the correct conventions of English. There are a number of grammar-checking software packages available that can check written work for subject-verb agreement, consistent verb tense, punctuation and other aspects of correct usage. The computer will highlight errors in usage, and the student can very quickly make the correction without spoiling the look of the printed

page. At this stage, also, the student can run a spelling checker program through his/her written work which will point out errors in spelling. With the use of the computer, editing becomes an easy learning activity.

Writing and Proofreading

Since all necessary corrections have been made, instead of rewriting the entire document, the student gives the print command to the computer and a crisp, clean copy is produced by the printer, ready for the final proofreading. If other errors are discovered at this stage, the student once again goes to the computer, calls up his/her file, makes the necessary correction, and again receives a printed copy.

Sharing and Publishing

At this stage, the completed document is submitted to the teacher, or it can be shared with peers. Although this step does not require a computer, the sharing can be done while the writing is still on the screen. It is probably, a good practice to do this, since the teacher or the student's peers may pick up an error or

a point that needs clarification. Further correction can then be made before the final print-out is obtained.

The review of literature which follows will focus upon research that has been done on the use of the computer in the writing process. It will also discuss the benefits and some problems of using the computer in the writing classroom.

CHAPTER 2

REVIEW OF CRELATED LITERATURE

Introduction -

A computer can no more teach the craft of writing than a paintbrush can teach the art of painting. But both are powerful tools, especially if you use them well.

(Wheeler, 1985, p.54)

The value of word processing as an important component of educational computer applications has been discussed in an ever-increasing number of articles over the past few years. The computer has been finding its way into the language arts classrooms, and English teachers are beginning to accept and apply this technology to the field of writing. However, despite the vast amount of literature on the subject, few of these articles are directed toward the successes or failures of computer applications to writing programs in the adult education setting.

Research

How extensive and how successful has the use of the computer been in adult writing programs? A number of

community colleges in Canada and the United States have been conducting observational studies to determine the effect of the computer on the writing process. Bean (1983), director of writing at Montana State University, observed the revision habits of four freshman composition students who used word processing as an aid for writing. His experiment showed that the computer can have a significant positive impact on revising habits. He states:

The success of this program for students suggests that the computer can help beginning writers learn to revise their initial drafts with less emphasis on lexical substitution and grammatical correctness and with more emphasis on progressive reshaping of ideas through successive draft (p. 146).

Collier (1983b), also studied revision strategies of students at Mount Royal College in Alberta. He pérceives inexperienced writers as facing four basic problems when they write.

1. The more intricate kind of revision, particularly those applied to the larger domains of a text (such as the paragraph) or to the text as a whole, may strain a student's conceptualizing powers. Often these powers

are already taxed by difficulties in proofreading and by problems in the choice of words and phrases, matters which a more experienced writer might solve automatically and unconsciously while focussing on larger issues in revision.

- 2. Most inexperienced writers are not able to juggle successfully the demands placed on short- and long-term memory by revision that requires more than simple addition, deletion, or substitution.
- 3. Since students seem frequently to assume that writing is governed by the same principles that control speech, they act as if altering a portion of their text wipes out the original, thus making its retrieval nearly impossible.
- 4. Revision always entails, at some point, recopying or retyping. Since serious revision requires large-scale alterations and thus several complete drafts, students often make minimal or trivial changes in a text so as to ensure that recopying is as simple and quick as possible (p. 149).

He felt that encouraging students to work at their writing on the word processor, particularly revision, would resolve most of these problems.

Collier studied four subjects (all female) from introductory composition courses, on the basis of several activities that demonstrate competence in writing. All of the students could touch-type, but none had used a word processor before. Two of the subjects possessed average writing skills, one, weak skills, and one, superior skills. He observed, and compared their revision done by hand and that done on the word processor.

Collier found that the use of a word processor for revision is more advantageous than the traditional method, and that it does not appear to have any detrimental effects on revision strategies. However, Collier notes that most word processors are far more complex than the typical writing requires, and he feels that if the word processor is to become a useful part of the writing laboratory then:

- 1) Students will have to become sufficiently "computer literate" to make composing and revising on a word processor a practical alternate to writing by hand.
- 2) Our electronic engineers will have to redesign the word processor so that it demonstrably supports and enhances the writing process.

 (D. 154).

With these improvements, he foresees students almost entirely dispensing with the traditional format of pen and paper, substituting in its place a keyboard, a computer, and a printer.

Unlike Collier, Smye (1984) does not see, a problem with the complexity of word processing programs. He feels that a variety of word processing programs, such as Bank Street Writer and Story Writer, aim at simplicity. Smye feels that because of the simplicity of such programs "Students can compose at the keyboard after only ten minutes of instruction" (p. 31).

In his work with students at Sheridan College in Ontario, Smye found that:

Ninety-seven percent of the students enjoyed using the computers. Ninety-one percent liked the computers because you can make mistakes without being embarrassed. Seventy-three percent agreed that they learned better in classes using computers than in classes that don't. Ninety percent agreed that computers allowed them to assume greater responsibility for their own learning (p. 36).

Similarly, Riefer and Smith (1983) studied randomly selected students taking freshman composition at Colorado State University, and found that 80% of these students enjoyed using the terminals and would use them again. Students surveyed in week five and ten of the experiment overwhelmingly agreed that using the computer is enjoyable, easy, and not frustrating.

Two further studies of word processing have been cited by Wresch (1983).

At Teachers' College, Columbia University, Collete Daiute spent several years researching the effects of word processors on student writing. She found these programs made a number of contributions. Pirst, she found readers were freer "to spill out" ideas directly from inner speech, since they needn't worry until later about spelling, tense agreement, inappropriate wording, or other problems; these could be mended later without having to recopy the entire text. Thus, she found, thoughts could more easily be

captured in the writers natural voice. In addition, projects which were heavily formatted such as lab reports (or grant proposals) could be entered first as an outline to ensure correct organization, and then "fleshed out" by inserting supporting detail.

She also found, as have many researchers, that because a word processor makes revision much easier and faster, students do more of it (pp. 797-8).

Another study of word processing, that one by Lillian Bridwell and Donald Ross (in Wresch 1983) at the University of Minnesota, points out that the computer does put some constraints on the writer. The limited size of the C.R.T. screen makes it difficult for writers to see as much of the text at one time as with paper and pen; as a result, text coherence may suffer. Another problem is that the gadgetry available on a computer may distract some writers, causing them to break off from writing every few words in order to "play" with editing features. And, of course, no matter how simple the word processors

are made, there will be a few writers who will be terrified by the new medium.

Despite these drawbacks, Bridwell and Ross found the word processor is an excellent medium for research on the writing process and that it improves student revisions.

In their judgement, the advantages outweighed the disadvantages so much that they plan to use word processors as a routine component of their composition classes.

Research conducted at the University of Victoria by Evans, Mickelson and Smith (1984), investigated the use of microcomputers in the development of the prose writing ability of university students. A computer-assisted language program, one which presents information responding to answers, and evaluating student input with programmed responses was used in this study. Student performance was measured through pre- and post-tests of sentence structure, error analyses, and examination of sentence types used in written compositions.

The results indicated few significant differences between control and experimental groups. It was concluded that computer-assisted instruction appears to be at least as effective as regular instruction.

What effect does writing on the computer have on creativity? Collier (1983a) studied college students by

comparing written text produced by hand, by typewriters, and by word processors for differences in improvement, increativity, and inwriting skills. His subjects included six college students - two with high creative ability, two with average creative ability, and two with low or weak creative ability.

His findings showed that the average creative ability group increased in creativity and the high creativity ability group increased their scores in writing skills when they shifted from writing skills by hand to typing. The strong ability group improved their creativity most with the word processor. The average creativity group was the most creative on the typewriters, next-most creative on the word processor, and the least creative ability group displayed little difference in creativity, between essays written by hand and that written on a typewriter. Use of the word processor for writing seemed to enhance creativity.

Similarly, Catano (1985) in his observation of two professional writers at Brown University, concluded that, contrary to expectations, computer technology and creativity are not incompatible.

Varsava (1986) Memorial University of Newfoundland, has also researched the effect of the computer on writing.

A study was set up using English 1000 students. The experimental group (English 1000 computer) had 28 students while the control group (English 1000) had 33 students (two dropped because of the additional time required to learn to function on the computer, and three dropped for unknown reasons).

During the study, students in the experimental group did all their writing on a computer using a text editor and a program called "Criticize". Criticize highlighted errors in diction, sexist language, deadwood phrases, spelling, and weak heginnings, but left correction of such errors to the students. The student in both groups had to complete one assignment per month.

Gain scores for all students were obtained by comparing their high school English mark and their final grade in English 1000. Statistically significant differences were found between the scores of both groups, with the experimental group showing the greater gain.

The above studies show that English teachers are trying computers in adult composition classes and researching their impact. Not all findings are positive. However, research is continuing, and programs for computer-assisted writing are being improved.

Advantages of Using Computers in Writing

The Word Processor

According to Myers (1986), the computer program that has had the greatest effect on writing outside of English classes is the word processor. These programs can vary from expensive, "dedicated" processors to micro-based programs, some of which are simple enough to be used by very young children.

Not surprisingly, the word processor, with its ability to allow students to make endless changes to their texts without rewrites, is receiving positive reviews in the literature. Schwartz (1984), feels that word processing can change both the way students write and their attitude about writing. She states:

of the word processor. Writing becomes a playground where revising is part of the fun instead of part of the punishment. For this reason, word processing is central to any use of computers in teaching writing. It changes the process fundamentally,

often making writers better readers of their own work and therefore more willing revisers for other readers (p. 240).

Ease of Revision

The computer offers the potential for new possibilities in teaching and learning. Dudley-Marling (1985); Levin (1984);-Loheyde (1984) and Smye (1984), all note the ease and speed with which revision can be accomplished by the. student as perhaps the greatest benefit of word processing. Insertions, deletions, spelling corrections and the like are readily accommodated on the computer. Using the commands available to him/her, the student can delete words, sentences, or whole paragraphs which can then be replaced by other words or sentences. The student can move sentences or paragraphs around in the text to make his/her composition more coherent. He/she can make additions to any part of the text at any time. frees the writer from continually starting over and running the risk of accomplishing very little. Students can also save their text on a disk for further revision and print it when they are satisfied with a final copy:

English teachers are often frustrated by the resistance of students to make changes and corrections in their

written work. Since revising and rewriting can be a tedious chore, it is easy to understand a student's reluctance to produce a number of drafts. Watt (1983), a writer and a teacher of writing, states:

It is extremely difficult to devote thoughtful and creative energy to the task of evaluating your writing when you know that it will be followed by the grueling process of integrating all the changes, then rewriting the entire piece. Even then there's the frustrating thought that you might want to make even more changes. Most of us prefer to stop with a first draft (p. 43).

Crist (1984), sees word processing programs as a means of surmounting this obstacle. He feels that if students can change word order, sentence construction, paragraph structure, and the organization of the composition without having to rewrite the entire composition, there would be fewer reasons for resistance to these essential tasks of writing.

Schwartz (1982), a professor of writing at Stockton State College, New Jersey, strongly advocates the use of computers in the writing classroom. Based on what current research tells us about composing, particularly revision, she feels that the computer seems both psychologically and technologically suited to help the writer write more, take more risks, and achieve more fully-developed writing. She states:

I would like to suggest, that the computer of today can, if wisely used, encourage writers of all ages to attempt more substantive changes in text. It can do this by reducing the frustration of recopying, by facilitating reading of the text during the intermediate writing stages both for the writer and other readers—and by reproducing multiply drafts of this text for easy sharing with faculty and peers during the intermediate writing stages.

As a result, the writer gains new confidence, energy, and information

needed to explore new meanings without feeling that there is a penalty for trying (p. 28).

vacc (1984), feels that with the development of word processing programs, the computer has great potential for assisting with the development of individual writing skills. She supports the use of the computer as a means of recording, editing, revising and printing creative writing experiences. Word processors have the potential to encourage learners to edit and revise their writing more willingly than does the traditional paper-pencil method.

Writing as a Comparison Process

An important advantage of writing on the computer is that with a word processor, writing becomes more of a comparison process. Newman (1984), believes that the capacity of the computer for storing and manipulating text makes it easier for the student to consider alternative frameworks while writing:

It (the computer) allows writers to become more willing to take risks, to be tentative about meaning for langer, to consider organization

and word choices more freely than ever before. What this means is that children (and adults, too) can learn a great deal about language and the writing process each time they engage in writing (p. 495).

According to Smye (1984), the computer seems to encourage what James Britton would describe as "the expressive use of language". He feels that student writers use "language as exploration" more willingly (p. 30). He says that students do more planning, replanning, editing and messing around with words than they have done before, and they do it with a lot less apprehension. Schwartz (1983), sees two advantages of using the computer for those who lack the confidence to play with language. The word processor can:

- 1. reduce initial fears of making mistakes, and
- encgurage a greater willingness to fully explore meanings (p. 28).

The actual process of writing entails prewriting, writing, and revision. The computer can make this process easier for beginning writers (Myers, 1986; Dudley-Marling,

1985; Watt, 1983). With a word processor, it becomes easy to experiment with words, try out different arrangements for the text, save several versions, print them all out, and compare. Writing becomes a process of continuous evaluation and revision. Since corrections are easily made, students are freed from their concern to get it right the first time.

Peer collaboration

The computer in the writing class provides excellent opportunities for peer collaboration. Several students can view the text at one time and help each other with the computer commands, thus making the writing process more fun. Samples of good writing can be stored on disks for modeling purposes and accessed at any time by a single student or by a group. As well, a single composition can be written using contributions from all members of the class.

Wheeler (1985), advocates this use of the computer. She feels that collaboration is both a useful writing activity and a way to take advantage of a limited number of computers. Simultaneous collaborative composition can provide opportunity for students to model the writing process for one another. When students work together,

they share the constraints of writing. One student may assume responsibility for entering and revising the text while, another may suggest what to say. Or they may wish to switch roles during the process. When partners disagree, they can try out alternative solutions to see what sounds better. This helps them to develop a sense of audience and voice.

Computer as a Motivator

The computer is viewed by a number of westers as a great motivator for getting students to write and to keep them writing. Levin (1984); Loheyde (1984); Cohen (1985) and Dudley-Marling (1985), all comment favorably on the computer as a motivator. Levin points out that since students are curious about computers, the machine itself is a strong attraction. Dudley-Marling has found that using the microcomputer to write letters can be a powerful motivator. Cohen states that students like to see their work in print, and that they are eager to write with a word processor. In summing up her experience with writing and the computer, she says:

I have found that microcomputers have a positive impact on students! motivation as well as achievement (p.47).

Fluidity of Text

One great value of the computer to the writing program lies in its capacity to keep fluid the process of writing, while at the same time the process may be fixed at any point for close study (Myers, 1986, p. 1).

It has been argued that computers make it easier to think while you write. Student writers often attribute their failure to produce a coherent essay to the problem of forgetting what it was they were going to say somewhere in the middle of their composition. Loheyde (1984), feels that strain on a student's memory can, in part, be alleviated by the ability to get one's ideas out on the screen quickly. Schwartz (1983) and Gula (1983) agree. They feel that the computer will not necessarily improve the quality of one's thoughts, but it will make it easier to think more clearly.

Struggle with Handwriting

Another advantage of using the computer in the writing class is the alleviating of the "physical" struggle with writing that some students experience. Once the difficulties with the physical process of writing with

pencil and paper are eliminated, the act of writing becomes easier for most learners. Bean (1983), director of writing at Montana State University, writes:

The computer ... can eliminate mechanical difficulties that hinder beginning writers, particularly the crampedillegibility of many students handwritten drafts and their lack of time for extensive copying (p. 146).

with the word processor, students need no longer be embarrassed about messy handwriting. Graves, in an interview with Green (1984), cited poor handwriting as one of the reasons students don't write. He states:

Some writers dismiss as unimportant their experiences and their views about issues because their handwriting has been deemed unacceptable. If writing is not pleasing to the eye, they decide it must not be pleasing to the mind (p. 12).

Change in Attitude towards Writing

According to Crist (1984), writing for most students is a drudgery to be gotten through as quickly as possible (p. 77). However, it appears that when given the opportunity to write on the computer, most students have a change of attitude toward Triting. (1984), states that students generally report liking computers or courses that use them. They feel word processing is an enjoyable way to prepare papers - it is not frustrating and not difficult. Wheeler (1985) writes that many teachers report that students, after having experienced writing with the computer, have an improved attitude towards writing, even when they are not using the computer. Gula (1983), has also noted a change of attitude toward writing, and he feels that with improvement of attitude there is invariably an improvement of quality. Since changes are easy, there is also more detail supplied in the students' writing. Other writers, (O'Brien, 1984 and Schwartz, 1982) have also reported changes in attitude towards writing by their students.

Advantages for Teachers

Writing with computers is advantageous to the teacher as well as for the student. Loheyde (1984); points out that writing which is legible and free of smeared pencil or pen marks is far easier to read, and that evaluation. decisions on a composition will not be colored by the struggle to decipher a student's handwriting. (1985), states that with traditional methods of writing, teachers respond to surface errors, because students can correct them without recopying an entire draft. 'Similarly, teachers tend not to encourage flexible planning strategies, because subsequent reorganization would require a new Requesting a second or third draft can be unrealistic and unproductive because students become frustrated and tend to make additional mistakes in the process. With word processing, however, students never have to recopy an entire draft. This means that teachers can set_higher standards for adhering to the conventions of writing.

English teachers are beginning to use word processing as a tool for teaching writing. Dictionary and editorial programs are also being used in conjunction with the word processing function. Teachers who use word processing in their writing instruction say that students enjoy writing

more and are encouraged to become better writers. However, many authors have warned about the misuse of a computer in the English classroom. It will not serve its purpose if used merely as an electronic workbook. Computers can be used for dral and practice, but they can also be used to encourage active, exploratory learning, particularly in the area of writing. Schwartz (1983), states:

We already know that teaching writing in the form of drills and exercises about spelling, grammar, syntax, etc., does not develop writing abilities. And word processor and computers will not be helpful if that is how they are used. I am not advocating that this advanced technology be attached to the "old" pedagogy (p. 35).

Clearly, advantages exist for using computers in the teaching of composition. Rodrigues (1985), believes that the word processor can become the centerpiece for an effective computer-writing curriculum. However, the computer by itself will not make better writers - only good instruction will improve a student's writing

performance: Wheeler (1985), feels that the technology and the teaching reinforce each other. English teachers must look at computers as a tool to be used. They should become familiar with existing programs designed to aid in the teaching of writing and use the computer to complement their instruction. If wisely used, this new technology can have a great impact on writing instruction.

Problems with Using the Computer

Although most educators have reported positive results when the computer is used to teach writing, there are a number of problems that need to be discussed.

Cost

Watt (1983) and Loheyde (1984), pointed to the cost of the computer unit, as one such problem. To teach writing while using a computer, it is necessary to have a keyboard, a monitor, a disk drive, a good word processing program, and access to a printer. This equipment is costly, even at the ratio of one computer per classroom.

Student Access

Researchers (Dudley-Marling, 1985; Wheeler, 1985; Watt, 1983; Fisher, 1983) have noted that in order for a word processing program to be of maximum benefit, a tremendous amount of time is needed at the computer to compose, edit and revise writing. Pew schools have the number of computers necessary to give every student this kind of access to the machines. Levin (1984), has the following to say on the subject:

If a class of 25 students tries to put hands on two computers, there will be few converts. But, if there are several machines, and if the class is divided into groups, fun and profit are possible (p. 47).

According to Wheeler (1985), students need time and guidance to become as efficient at using a word processor as they are at using a pencil. A writing corner could be set up to work with individuals or small groups and this would eliminate some of the problem. Also, where there are a limited number of computers, flexibility in timetabling with the computer being used all day, as opposed to during writing period only, could help.

The problem of giving each student access to the word processor is a very real one, and the only solution is to supply more computers in the classroom.

Lack of Faculty Awareness

A computer is of no value if staff members are unwilling to use it or do not realize the full potential of such a teaching tool. Daiute (1985), claims that if a teacher is unaware of the potential of the machine, the temptation is to use it as a very expensive substitute for a workbook. This problem can be overcome by providing teachers with workshops and inservice training programs to demonstrate good software and to show how it can be used in the writing program. As Bruce et al (1985), expressed it:

A computer can be a wonderful teaching tool, a major classroom disruption, or a waste of resources (p. 149),

It is the teacher who will determine whether or not the computer will be used in the classroom.

Lack of Typing Skills

Most proponents of computers in the writing class

feel that the lack of typing skills is not a problem, because most students are able to use the "hunt and peck" method well enough to use the computer. R. Dollard (personal communication, June 17, 1986), Business Education-Chairperson, Bay St. George Community College, disagrees. She feels that in order for a student to get the maximum benefit from using the computer he/she must first learn how to type. One of the main reasons for using the computer is to get the words into print quickly. The "hunt and peak" method slows students, and ideas cannot flow smoothly if the student has to stop to search for the right key. She feels that keyboarding skills should be a prerequisite to any computer-assisted writing course.

Learning the Commands.

A concern of some teachers is that students must learn the commands in order to be able to use the computer. It becomes important here to select a word processing program with a suitable level of difficulty for the student. The teagher would need to become familiar with available programs and make a selection suited to the students' needs. The use of cue cards and having

students work together can help to make the learning of commands a little easier.

Tendency Toward Surface Correction

. Some educators fear that although the use of the computer makes revision easier, the focus is on making changes at the word level, which however, does not necessarily add to the quality of the text. This may indeed happen initially. However, according to Schwartz (1982), this problem is eliminated when writing is The writer quickly learns that no matter how nice the text looks, no matter how few spelling and punctuation problem there are, if the message is not clearly stated, others will not understand and will question the meaning. In trying to explain, the writer will discover that he/she will need to add, delete or rearrange in order to make the text clearer. Wheeler (1985), feels that the process of writing has to be empha-Students need to learn how to take advantage of the computer as a writing tool.

Conclusion

Will the computer fulfill its potential as an educational tool? The answer depends to a large extent

on the user. The computer could be used primarily as a mindless electronic toy, or we as educators could make it work for us. The computer will do what it is programmed to do, so the choice is entirely ours. English teachers have a number of options. As Withey (1983), puts it:

"Teachers may opt for ignorance, rail against it, or operate as if it did not exist" (p.24). However, the fact remains that computers are here and the English teacher's best option is to have a voice in the selection of hardware and software so that computers can become a useful tool in the teaching of writing. This researcher feels that evidence strongly supports the use of the computer in the writing classroom.

CHAPTER 3

PURPOSE OF THE STUDY

The present study was conducted to ascertain to what extent and for what purpose colleges and vocational centers across Canada use the computer as a tool in the writing classroom. Although many articles have been written about the use of computers in writing, very little attention has been paid to adult experiences with this technology. The literature, therefore, has left many questions unanswered. Can statements made about the use of computers by children be generalized to the adult learning situation? More specifically, this study seeks to answer the following questions: ,

- 1. Do computers offer an enjoyable learning experience for adult writers?
- 2. Are adults apprehensive about this new technology in the classroom?
- 3. How do people in adult education feel about the computer and its potential as a teaching tool?

- 4. Is there an improvement in students' writing when it is done on the computer?
- 5. Why are computers not being used on a larger scale in writing programs in the field of adult education?
- appropriate writing software for adults?
- 7. For what purpose is the computer being used in the English classroom?
- 8. How many hours per week do students spend at the computer?, and
- 9. What do adult educators feel is a workable computer/student ratio in a writing program?

Significance of the Study

This study was conducted in order to gain some insight, into how computers are being used in adult education

programs in Canada, their usefulness in the area of writing, and adult students' reactions to the use of the computer.

The results of this study should be of particular interest to administrators and educators in adult education in Newfoundland who are interested in using this new technology in their writing programs.

Design of the Study

The present section outlines the method used to gather data for the study.

1. The Survey Instrument

To obtain from adult educators the information required to answer the questions listed in the Purpose of the Study, the mailed questionnaire method was adopted. Based on the available literature concerning the computer and its use in the composition process, on general discussions with educators in the field, and with the advice of two professors at Memorial University, a questionnaire was constructed.

The questionnaire was then subjected to analysis by several sources. It was first administered to ten adult

teaching of English. These educators were asked to make suggestions as to necessary additions or deletions and to check wording for clarity. A reply was received from each with suggestions for improvements. Secondly this investigator discussed the questionnaire with her thesis advisor and with graduate students in the Department of Curriculum and Instruction at Memorial University.

Each questionnaire item was examined carefully, and, as a result, a number of changes were made.

The questionnaire was divided into three sections. Section 1 (demographics) was to be answered by all respondents. Section II was designed for those presently using computers as an aid in the teaching of writing, while Section III was designed for those who were not using a computer for this purpose.

2. Pilot Study

As stated earlier, this questionnaire was administered to ten adult educators in Newfoundland. These ten were not included when the responses to the revised questionnaire were calculated.

As a result of the pilot study, a number of questions were changed to statements and the use of a Likert-type scale was incorporated using a four point scale covering Strongly Agree (SA), Agree (A), Disagree (D), and Strongly Disagree (SD). The 'Unsure' option was intentionally omitted in the hope that this would cause respondents to give the statements more serious thought. However, a number of respondents added the fifth option as can be seen in the tabulation of results (Tables VII and X).

The Sample

sent questionnaires to all Community Colleges and Vocational Centers in English speaking Canada as listed in The Directory of Canadian Schools. A total of 368 questionnaires were mailed in March 1986. Two hundred forty-four questionnaires or 66% were returned, 36 of which were unanswered because administrators felt that staff members were too busy at this time to respond. A breakdown in institutions responding can be seen in Table 1.

INSTITUTION	NUMBER
Community College	165
Vocational Training Centre	39 :
Junior College	2
Other	_2
Total	208

Limitations

The limitations of a mailed questionnaire as outlined by Wallace (in Miller, 1970), apply to this study. Wallace states the disadvantages as follows:

- 1. problem of non-returns,
- those who answer the questionnaire may differ from the non-respondents thereby biasing the sample,
- 3. validity depends on the ability and willingness of the respondent to provide information,
- 4. possibility of misinterpretation of the question,
- or evasive answers; no observation of apparent reluctance or evasiveness (pp. 76-77).

However, because of the large geographic area surveyed and because a means of collecting data at a minimum of time and expense was required, this researcher chose the mailed questionnaire as a survey instrument.

An effort was made to lessen the influence of the weakness of the mailed questionnaire upon this study. A pilot study was conducted in an attempt to assure face validity and to help eliminate misinterpretation of the questions. To help reduce the number of non-returns, a self-addressed, stamped envelope was included with each mailed questionnaire.

Sixty-six percent of those surveyed responded willingly, so this researcher assumes that all answers are indeed valid.

Definition of Terms

For the purposes of this study, the following terms have been defined:

Adult

An individual who is fifteen years of age or older and who is eligible for entry into Community College or Vacational programs.

Computer

In this case a microcomputer - a system containing a microprocessor, memory, and input/output circuits.

Word Processor

A program which makes it possible to enter and to revise writing on the computer. This allows formatting (centering, margins) to be done.

Adult Basic Education

The process of upgrading an individuals' education in the areas of Math, English and Science to a level where that student has met the requirements for entry to trades or general studies.

Vocational

Having to do with trades.

Post-secondary

Beyond the high school graduation level.

Junior College

Any institution offering two year university - parallel programs for students transferring to universities and programs of two years of vocational training for students.

Need for the Study

Since no national survey exists on how colleges are using computers in the English classroom, this study aims in part—to answer that question. It is hoped by the researcher that this will:

- show that computers are being used successfully in writing programs in other provinces of Canada;
- 2. provide some direction for establishing a computer-assisted writing course for adult learners, and
- 3. give interested English instructors a better understanding of adult learners' concerns and feelings about the use of computers in their writing.

Analysis of the Data

This section is divided into two parts. The first presents data related to adult educators who use the computer in writing classes. The second section presents data related to adult educators not presently using the computer in writing class.

This investigator invited recommendations and suggestions for using the computer in adult writing programs and encouraged comments from both users and non-users. Selected comments from this section of the questionnaire can be found in Appendix B.

Computer Users

This survey shows that computers are being used at all levels of adult education with the greater percentage being used at the post-secondary level and in classes of more than 20 students. Table II shows the levels taught. Table III shows the size of the classes.

TABLE II
LEVELS TAUGHT (N=61)

Level				lumber	Percentage		
Adult Basic Basic R		· .		20	33		
Vocational			-	5	8		
Post-secondary •				36	. 59 <		
Other	ı	•	V	_0_	. <u>. 0.</u> .		
Total	tabas	e -		61	100		

TABLE III
SIME OF CLASS(ES) (N=61)

Size of Class(es)	4	,	Number	Percentage	
fewer than 15	2	,	10/10	16	
15-20		_	29 2	48	
more than 20			22	<u> 36</u>	
Total	:202 11 16 16 16 16	6 4 ===	61	100	

One concern of instructors considering the use of computers to assist in the writing program is the number of hours per week that should be devoted to computer use.

Fifty-six percent of users reported that they spent one to three hours per week at the terminal. Table IV outlines hours spent.

TABLE IV.
AVERAGE HOURS PER WEEK (N=61)

Hours	· -	,	•	- A		Number	Per	centage
1-3%			i	•		34		56
4÷6				₹	٠ _	17		28
47−9		- •	. 🛌	-	,	. 7		11
∕other		- `		,		14.3		_5
Total	; 224ppc =					61		100

When asked what a workable student/computer ratio would be in a writing program, fifty-four percent of the respondents felt that a 1-1 ratio would be best. See Table V which follows.

STUDENT/COMPUTER RATIO (N=61)

Ratio	<u> </u>			Number	_ Percentage
3-1				19	31
. 5 -1	•			4	7
-7-1	. 4			5	8
other* (1-1)	-	•		33	54
Total	٠.	-	~	61	- 100

^{*} All respondents who checked this category specified 1-1.

One of the main purposes of this survey was to determine how the computer was being used for writing. Respondents were asked to note whether it was used for letter writing, paragraph writing, or essay writing. Seventy-four percent of those responding said they used the computer for all three areas, while 7% used the computer for paragraph writing only and ll% for essay writing only. The 8% who checked "other" all specified that it was used in journalism classes, Table VI gives a summary of computer uses.

TABLE VI
COMPUTER USES (N=61)

Number	Percentage
. 0	. 0
4 .	7 -
7	11
. 5	8
45	<u>_74</u>
61	100
	0 4 7 5 45

Adult Educator Opinions

Of the 208 adult educators who responded to the questionnaire sent to all Community Colleges and Vocational-Centers in English speaking Canada, 61 or 29% of these were using the computer in their writing classes (complete tabulated responses appear in Table VII).

When asked imphey felt the computer is a useful tool for teaching writing, 97% of the users agreed, while 3% disagreed. Does the use of the computer improve the

students' writing? 92% of the respondents felt that it did, 5% disagreed, and 3% were unsure.

Are adult students apprehensive about using the computer as a tool in writing? Eighty-nine percent of the users reported that students are generally apprehensive when first exposed to the computer. However, 98% reported that after the initial introduction, students generally find the process enjoyable and rewarding.

One of the biggest fears of educators (teachers) is that the computer will replace them as the medium of instruction. Adult educators who use computers in their writing classes do not seem to have that concern. One hundred percent of the respondents considered the computer a complement to and not a substitute for the teacher.

A computer allows for ease of revision and consequently repeated evaluation of students, work. Ninety-four percent of respondents agreed with this statement, 3t disagreed, and 3t were unsure. When asked if availability of appropriate software for teaching writing to adults presented a problem, 60t agreed that it did, while 40t disagreed.

Results for Individual Statements

The percentage of respondents selecting each response for each statement is given in Table VII

TABLE VII RESULTS FOR INDIVIDUAL STATEMENTS

Statement		Percentage of Responder				ndents
•		SA	A	υN	Ď	SD*
1.	The computer is a useful tool for teaching writing.	44	53	0	3	0
2.	The use of the computer improves the students' writing.	25	67	3	5	0 .
3.	Adult students are generally apprehensive when first exposed to writing on the computer.	25	64	1,		0
•	After the initial introduction, students generally find the process enjoyable and rewarding.	39	59	2	, 0	0
5.	The computer is considered a complement to and not a substitute for the teacher.	¹ 79 	21)	0	. •	0
6.	The ease with which revision can be done allows for repeated evaluation of students' work.	41	53	31	3	- 1
7.	The availability of appropriate software is a problem when teaching writing to adults.	, 16	44	0	38	2

^{*} SA = Strongly Agree A = Agree : D = Disagrée U = Unsure SD = Strongly Disagree

Computer Non-Users

This section presents data related to educators not presently using computers in writing classes. The greater percentage of non-users (44%) taught at the Adult Basic Education level. Information on levels taught is presented in Table VIII.

TABLE VIII
LEVELS TAUGET (N=147)

Level		4	Númber	Percentage,
Adult Basic Education			65.	44
Vocational			23	15
Post-secondary	*		56	38
Other	•		_5	<u></u>
Total		7	147	100
● ↑			` •	•

Despite the fact that they were not using computers to teach writing, many of the non-users were familiar with computers. Forty-five percent were either self-taught or had completed formal courses. Thirty-five percent

of the respondents reported very little familiarity with computers, while twenty percent said they had no familiarity. TablelX shows the familiarity with computers.

TABLE IX
PANILIARITY WITH COMPUTERS (N=147)

PAMILIARITY	NUMBER	PERCENTAGE
Completed formal courses	25	17 .
Self-taught	41	. 28
Very little familiarity,	51	35
No familiarity	130	_20
Total	147	100

Of the 208 adult educators who responded to the questionnairesent to all Community Colleges and Vocational Centers in English-speaking Canada, 71% were non-users.

When asked if they felt the computer is a useful tool for teaching writing, a strong 88% agreed, 9% disagreed and 3% were unsure. In response to the statement that they would use a computer in adult writing programs if one were available, 82% said that they would, 12% would

not, while 6% were unsure. This, combined with the positive response to the preceding statement, suggests that adult ducators are very receptive to this new technology.

When non-users were asked if the general use of the computer to teach writing to adults would be realized in the next five years, 65% agreed, 23% disagreed, while 12% were unsure.

Results for Individual Statements

The percentage of respondents selecting each response for each statement is given in Table X.

TABLE X
RESULTS FOR INDIVIDUALS STATEMENTS

Statement		Per	centag	Respo	Respondents	
, -	-	SA	A	υ	Þ	SD*
	The computer could be a useful tool for teaching writing to adults.	29	-59	3	5	4
2.	I would use a computer for this purpose if one were available.	24	-58	~ .6	.7	5
3.	The general use of the computer to teach writing to adults will be realized in the next five years.	17	48	12 	18	5

* SA = Strongly Agree D = Disagree U = Unsure A = Agree SD = Strongly Disagree

The positive response to statements one and two above again shows that adult educators are very receptive to this new technology. Then why is the percentage of users so low? Fifty-nine percent felt that lack of funds was the number one reason. Other reasons for non-use on the part of adult educators can be seen in Table XI.

TABLE XI
REASONS FOR NON-USE OF COMPUTERS

Rea	BONS	Percentage of Responses
a)	Lack of funds	59
b)	Lack of staff training	39
c)	Lack of Buitable software	33
đ)	Resistance of faculty	11
e)	Resistance of administration	5 ,
£)	Other	· <u>3</u>
Tot	al	, 150

^{*} Percentage totals more than 100 because some respondents checked more than one option.

SUMMARY

Overall both users and non-users responded positively to using computers in writing classes. Ninety-one percent of all respondents felt that the computer is a useful tool for teaching writing, 7% disagreed, and 2% were unsure.

This survey showed that computers are being used in adult writing classes across Canada but on a smaller scale than this researcher had assumed. Only 29% of the adult educators who responded to the questionnaire were using the computer as a writing aid. Cost of hardware and software was the main reason for non-use.

The main function of the computer in the English program is word processing which gives students a chance to revise and rewrite. However, it was also noted that in 8% of the cases it was used for diagnostic purposes, 20% for tutorial, 25% for drill and practice and 5% for enrichment.

Conclusion

The microcomputer has potential for making significant changes in the way adult writing classes are structured. Though we are still in a transitional state, the situation is rapidly changing. This researcher predicts that in the near future, students will use word processors for writing as commonly as they now use calculators for mathematics. Within a few years teachers will use computers in some combination of ways in adult writing

programs. Students will revise their writing on computers and will receive computerized feedback on at least some aspects of their writing.

The following chapters will outline the rationale and objective for a computer-assisted writing program. Chapter VI will suggest activities for a sixteen-week teaching module for the program.

RATIONALE FOR A TEACHING MODULE ON USING THE COMPUTER IN THE WRITING PROCESS

Technology will ... increasingly affect what we teach and how communications are generated. Recent advances in communication technology are embryonic, and writing teachers are just beginning to examine the potential for integrating computer technology and composing instruction (Tebeaux, 1985, p. 426).

Colleges and universities are reporting that students at these institutions lack the ability to communicate effectively while using the written word. Walpole and Hess (1985), have noted that students of today do not write well and that schools must improve the ability of our students to write. As well, reports from industry indicate that employees do not possess basic writing skills and recommend that schools and

colleges place more emphasis on the acquisition of these skills. P.J. Power (personal communication, June 18, 1986) Chairman of the Industry Advisory Committee to the technologies, Bay St. George Community College, states that one of the main complaints from industry is that graduates lack good writing skills.

How can writing instructors rectify this problem? The answer would appear to be simple: one learns to write by writing. However, a major difficulty lies in motivating adult-students to write and revise their written work. Having already completed ten or eleven years of writing in our school system, many students feel there is no need to do more. Most view writing, particularly revision, as a drudgery. Having to produce second and third drafts demands time that the student does not, have or is unwilling to give. Teachers are also reluctant to make such demands of a student because of the time and work required to produce multiple drafts.

When writing is done by hand and a student has to make changes in the text, the entire paper has to be rewritten. However, using the computer as a writing tool eliminates the frustration of rewrites. Changes in texts are very easily made. A student can go to the computer,

insert his/her disk, make necessary additions or deletions, and get a new print-out of his/her entire paper without having to rewrite anything. It is this writer's contention that this new medium for writing will be motivating in itself, despite the belief that adults are intimidated by the advanced technology. In a recent survey done by this researcher of adult/education across Canada on the use of the computer in writing classes, it was reported that although adults are a little apprehensive initially, they generally enjoy the process.

Hyers (1984), reports on his use of the computer in the teaching of writing development to first semester students at Seneca College and in so doing outlines the reasons for the teaching module included here. He feels that the gains of such a program are threefold:

Students reported that the writing task is more enjoyable, revisions are easier to make and they have acquired a skill that will be useful in other writing situations (p. 27).

This module addresses itself to the need for adult students to discover the computer as a tool which

facilitates composition and revision as well as a tool which provides them with an additional skill to be used in the work place. As the student progresses through the exercises, he/she will be applying word processing functions to writing problems, and at the same time he/she will be preparing himself to use word processors effectively in future writing situations. This module will provide opportunity for many different kinds of writing, for different purposes and for different audiences.

Composition is a skill requiring more practice than anything else. This can best be accomplished in the context of the workshop classroom model - lecture, discussion, writing, and rewriting with the computer and a word processing program as composition tools. The workshop model is the basis for this teaching module.

Southwell (1982), proposes another good reason for using the computer for developmental writing. She feels that the computer keeps students constantly involved in their learning, offers privacy because it spares students having to reveal to others how much they may not know, and contributes to positive attitudes. These provisiona are important for adult learners who may feel inadequate

and need experience that can help build self-confidence and permit them to progresses their own rate.

The computer is a took of the current age and adult educators must explore the potential of this new medium for writing. Why have students perform the tedious task of writing and rewriting when they can easily compose and revise at the computer? Not only does writing become easier, but when individuals become familiar with the word processing commands, they work independently. Such a consequence is most applicable to adult learning.

CHAPTER 5

BEHAVIORAL OBJECTIVES FOR THE MODULE

The main purpose of educational objectives is to give direction the learning process. The objectives which follow are fundamental to the writing process and particularly to writing on the computer. These objectives were developed with career-oriented high school graduates in mind. Therefore, the objectives do not deal directly with learning to write but with developing and practising good writing skills.

Behavioral Objectives for the Module

After carefully completing the module, the student should be able to:

- 1. know the computer and its components,
- 2. know how to care for the computer and disks,
- 3. know how to start and stop the computer,
- 4. know how to load and stop a computer program
- 5. call up the computer menu or directory,
- 6. select required word processing functions,
 - 7. recover from errors,
- B. create and name a file,

- recall a file,
- 10. use the centering command,
 - 11. use the command to set margins,
- 12. use the insert and delete functions,
- 13. use the save and print commands,
- 14. move the cursor a word, a line, a screen,
- 15. use the scrolling techniques,
- 16. rearrange blocks of text,
- 17. enter a piece of writing on the computer,
- 18. use the indent function,
- 19. use the double/triple spacing command,
- 20. separate and combine text,
- 21. know the six stages of writing as being:
 - 1. prewriting
 - 2. writing
 - rèvising
 - 4. editing
 - 5. writing and proofreading
 - 6. sharing and publishing
- 22. use the steps of the writing process to develop acceptable written communications;

- ,23. know the functions involved in revising as being:
 - 1. addition
 - 2. deletion 4
 - transposition
 - 4. substitution
- 24. use the functions involved in revising,
- 25. know the operations associated with effective editing procedures as being:
 - 1. capitalization
 - 2. punctuation
 - 3. subject-verb agreement
 - 4. consistent verb tense
 - 5. pronoun reference and agreement
 - ,6. appropriate word choice
 - 7. spelling
- 26. use effective editing procedures,

- 27. know the methods of gathering ideas for writing as being:
 - 1. discussion with others
 - 2: brainstorming
 - use of literary materials
 - 4. \ observation
 - 5. recalling
- 28. use these methods to gather information for a composition,
- 29. demonstrate audience awareness when writing,
- 30 recognize a well constructed piece of writing,
- 31. recognize the value of unity and coherence in writing,
- 32. use unity and coherence in writing,
- 33. know the different methods of ordering informationchronological, spatial, categorical,
- 34. use the different methods of ordering information,
- 35. recognize the importance of using supporting details in writing examples cause/effect, comparison/contrast,
- 36. use supporting details in Writing,

- 37. develop a topic sentence by maintaining the subject in several consecutive sentences,
- 38. produce several different types of writing from the same topic sentence.
- 39. writé an effect ve ending,
- 40. recognize the importance of descriptive detail and vivid verbs in writing,
- 41. write a descriptive paragraph,
- 42. know the effects of sensory appeal on writing,
- 43 use sensory appeal in writing,
- 44. know the elements of narration as being:
 - 1. purpose
 - 2. point of view
 - 3. structure
- 45. write a naržative paragraph,
- 46. use clear, concise language,
- 47. know the elements of exposition as being:
 - 1. structure
 - 2. thesis statement
 - 3. methods of development
 - 4. unity and focus
 - 5. coherence

- 48. write an expository paragraph,
- 49. know the importance of transition in writing,
- 50. use transition in producing an essay of several paragraphs,
- 51. know the kinds of information to be included in a-resume,
- 52. prepare a resume,
- 53. recognize situations requiring various kinds of business letters,
- 54. write a letter of application ,
- 55. , write a letter of inquiry or complaint,
- 56. write a friendly letter,
- 57. recognize situations requiring a memo,
- 58. recognize information contained in a memo,
- 59. recognize similarities/differences between the business letter and the memo,
- 60. Write appropriate memos for various situations,
- 61. recognize different types of reports,
- 62. recognize kinds of intermation contained in reports.
- 63. research facts for a simple report,

- 64. write a simple business or investigation report,
- 65. know the aspects of creative writing as being:
 - 1. sincerity
 - 2. emotion /
 - 3. originality
 - 4. re-creation of an experience.
- 66. discuss various pieces of writing in terms of these aspects,
- 67. know the importance of using figurative language and of avoiding cliches,
- 68. write a short essay, keeping in mind the aspects of creative writing,
- 69. use figurative language,
- 70. avoid cliches in writing.

CHAPTER 6

OUTLINE OF POSSIBLE ACTIVITIES FOR A TEACHING MODULE ON COMPUTER-ASSISTED WRITING

Introduction

What is written without effort is in general read without pleasure.

(Samuel Johnson)

This statement sets the tone for any writing lesson. Producing an effective piece of writing often requires several drafts of the written work prior to a finished product. When done by hand, this indeed demands much effort on the writer's part. However, some of the redundance and unnecessary effort required to produce good writing can be eliminated by utilizing the latest in educational technology, the computer, in the writing class.

This module aims to improve a student's writing ability by exposing each one to a variety of writing - for different purposes, and for different audiences. At the same time, the module aims to alleviate the laborious task of revising and rewriting entire scripts.

This researcher assumes that these students will already have mastered the basics of writing. Therefore, the lecture/discussion activities of this module will deal with methods of improving upon these basics by examining and discussing samples of good writing. Any problems with grammar and mechanics should be handled on an individual basis in student/teacher conferencing sessions.

Evaluation for this module will be continuous. Each piece of writing will be kept on file for comparison purposes, but only the final copy will be considered in determining a student's grade.

This teaching module is designed to cover a sixteen-week period of three lessons per week. Each
lesson is designed to cover a fifty-minute teaching
period. Detailed lesson plans are not provided. The
intention of this researcher is to outline activities
that a writing teacher can adapt to the needs of his/her
individual students. Time constraints for activities,
are based on what this researcher has determined to be
the level that the average student can accomplish.
Individual students who do not require the time allotted
to complete exercises can use the extra time to work on

written assignments for other classes. Students experiencing further difficulties will be dealt with on an
individual basis in the form of instructor-administered
tutorials.

The first six lessons of the module will focus on the operation and care of a computer and on the basics of operating a word procession program. The process of writing will not be directly discussed during this period. Since individual instructors will be using different computers and a variety of word processing programs; the outline of the first six lessons will be a general one. Since explanations may vary depending on the computer and the word processing program being used, each instructor will be guided by the manuals which accompany the computer and word processing program when these lessons are conducted.

The Computer

Week I Lesson 1

Thin lesson will familiarize the student with the tomputer and its components. A step-by-step explanation, of the function of each component will be necessary. Have

students sit at the computer as you discuss each component - the keyboard, the screen, disks, disk drive, and the printer. At this time it is very important to explain to the class how to care for each computer component, particularly the disks.

This lesson should also cover the basic steps in using a computer. These steps would include?

- a) starting the computer,
- b) loading a program,
- c) stopping a program, and
- d) turning off the computer.

Have students perform and practice each step.

Week 1. Lesson 2.

This lesson will begin with a review of how to start and stop the computer, and how to start and stop the word processing program. This lesson will also cover:

- a) an explanation of the program menu,
- b) how to call a menu to the screen,
- c) how to select word processing functions,
- d) how to recover from errors.

All of this will be outlined in the word processing manual. Have students practice these exercises.

Week I. Lesson 3.

The student is now ready to enter text and use some of the word processing functions to make corrections. Provide each student with a letter or a paragraph which has mistakes throughout. Go through the following procedure with the students:

- a) have each student create and name a file,
- b) have students type in the piece of writing exactly as it appears,
- s) 'show students how to set margins and use the centering command,
- d) show the students how to use the insert
 and delete functions,
- (e) show students how to correct mistakes in the text,
- (f) demonstrate how to save and print the document.

Week II. Lesson 4.

This lesson will begin by having each student recover the piece of writing which he/she saved on disk in the previous lesson. This lesson should review everything to make further changes in the piece of writing, each one will practice the functions introduced in the previous lesson. At this time, the student should be shown how to move the cursor without having it cover each letter. In effect, the student should be taught how to move the cursor one line or one screen. At this stage the student should be introduced to scrolling - moving the entire text backward or forward. At the end of this lesson, the student should once again use the SAVE and PRINT commands.

Week II. Lesson 5

This lesson will cover inserting, deleting, and rearranging blocks of text. In order to accomplish this, the student will need to call his/her original file to the screen. Another paragraph, prepared by the instructor, will now be added to the original text by the student. This paragraph will include mistakes such as words repeated, a sentence repeated, and illogical ordering of the sentences. The student should be directed to delete the sentence that appears twice in the text. Since the sentences are not in logical order, the student will practice block movement of text to rearrange them. A sentence from paragraph two may be moved to paragraph

one. New words or sentences may be added to either paragraph. A whole paragraph may be moved, such that paragraph two now becomes paragraph one. Any such exercise will suffice as long as the student acknowledges the need of adding and deleting characters, words, or whole lines, and can see how the entire text can be reshuffled using the commands available. This new document can now be SAVED and PRINTED.

Week II. Lesson 6

This lesson will deal with entering paragraphs correctly. The student will practice how to:

- a) indent a paragraph,
- b) select double or friple spacing,
- c) split one paragraph into several, and
- d) merge several paragraphs into one

Instruct students to create and name another file. Provide students with a piece of writing consisting of two or three paragraphs to be entered on the computer. The student can now be directed to split a paragraph between two specified sentences. Paragraph one may be joined with paragraph two. Again, any exercises will suffice, so long as the student practices the new commands. At the end of the period, the student should SAVE and PRINT his/her written work.

WRITING ACTIVITIES

The student is now ready to begin the writing program and use the computer as a composing aid. Although the basic word processing functions will have been covered, a number of others will be introduced during the course of the writing. When students are sufficiently familiar with the word processing program, they can be introduced to other programs such as a spell check program or grammar check program. These programs are not really essential to a computer-assisted writing course, so when they are to be used is entirely up to the writing instructor.

The following exercises deal directly with writing. It is recommended that all exercises be short (200-300 words). The idea is not to have students produce lengthy documents but to write well.

Each of the following activities is based on the workshop model of teaching writing. A lecture to be followed by discussion will introduce each topic. The two classes following will be used for writing and revising. During these periods, teacher/student conferences and sharing with peers will take place.

Week III. Lesson 7.

Lecture seven covers the steps of the writing process from pre-writing to writing the final draft. Involve the students in a discussion of writing, methods used by experienced writers and methods the students themselves use. Discuss the computer and the advantages of using it during all stages of the writing process. Demonstrate the steps of the writing process by using a computer and a large monitor which can be viewed by the whole class. At the end of this lesson, direct students to spend some time between classes thinking about a topic that they would like to write about the during next class. Encourage students to select a topic that they know and are interested in.

Week III. Lesson 8

The first 20 minutes of this class period should be a free writing exercise. Instruct students to sit at the keyboard, create a new file, and write for 15 - 20 minutes. Have them simply list words, phrases, sentences - anything that comes to mind about the topic they have chosen. Assure the students that they need not be concerned about coherence or usefulness. Encourage

students to think of the audience for whom they are writing. Try to reinforce everything that was covered earlier on the stages of writing. It should be pointed out that even professional writers seldom get a perfect piece of writing the first time around. After about 20 minutes, have the students print a copy of their ideas.

Using this list of ideas, have students spend the remainder of the period writing a paragraph which will be saved on diak, printed, and submitted for review. These paragraphs will provide the exercise for the next writing session.

Week III. Lesson 9

This writing session will be used by the student to make essential changes in his/her written paragraph. Once revisions are made, the corrected paragraph is saved on disk and printed. At this point, samples of student writing may be shown to the class on the large monitor, and the students may wish then to return to the computer to revise further.

Week IV. Lesson 10

The students have now completed their first piece of writing, and you as the instructor will have some

idea of the students' writing ability. It is now time to look at some samples of good writing. These samples can be obtained from a number of sources and put on a disk to be displayed on the large monitor for the entire class to view. Have the students examine and discuss opening sentences, supporting details, and endings. Use the sample paragraphs to show how writers can effectively communicate their thoughts with the help of good paragraph structure. Discuss the concepts of unity and coherence with the students. Discuss the ordering of events in a paragraph - time, space, climax. As a home assignment, provide students with a list of topic sentences and have them develop one of these sentences into a well structured paragraph. paragraphs will be shared with teachers and peers during the next writing session.

Week IV. Lesson 11

During the first five minutes of this class period, each student will enter his/her paragraph on a computer disk. It is now ready to be revised. Some students may wish to display their paragraphs on a large monitor, for peer evaluation. Time should be allotted for this

type of activity. The remainder of this period will be used for student/teacher conferring and peer/peer conference.

Week IV. Lesson 12

This is a time to revise and rewrite. Have the student rewrite the paragraph in at least two different ways and copy both for comparison purposes. The student will then decide which version sounds best. A student may decide whether he she wants to use sections from both paragraphs to produce a third. Students will produce as many versions as they wish, until they are satisfied with a final copy. This exercise simply enables the student to play with language.

Week V. Lesson 13

This class period will be spent discussing and demonstrating to the class how the addition of describing words can improve a paragraph by providing more vivid pictures for the reader. Have sentences, to which descriptive detail can be added, on a disk, and use the large monitor for demonstration. Have students suggest describing words to add to these sentences. Discuss

the idea of "appeal" to one or more of the senses when writing. Discuss the use of vivid verbs. Demonstrate how comparing and contrasting can make pictures mone vivid. Review the use of interesting openings and strong endings.

Weeks V. Lesson 14

It is suggested that this period be used for in-class writing. Have students select a topic of their choice (or provide a number of topics for the students) and enter a descriptive paragraph on their disks. Have them SAVE and PRINT their rough draft. This should be submitted for the instructor's comments at the end of class.

Week V. Lesson 15

This period will be used for revising and sharing writing with the class. A final copy should be produced during this period.

Week VI. Lesson 16

This lesson deals with the narrative paragraph. Discuss how this paragraph will tell about things that happened and how it is normally written with one event

following in sequence after another. Discuss the use of clear and precise language. Show how descriptive detail can be included. Have students compose and enter a narrative paragraph on their personal disks and PRINT a copy for submission.

Week VI. Lesson 17

This class should be used by the students to discuss and revise their written work. A final copy should be produced during this period.

Week VI. Lesson 18

This lesson will deal with the expository paragraph. This is explanatory writing - how to make a cake; how to fix a flat, tire. Discuss how narration and description can be used to enrich expository writing. Discuss the use of examples when trying to explain something. Discuss the importance of clear and precise language.

Have students open a new file at the computer and compose and enter an expository paragraph. Have a few suggested topics for students who have problems deciding on a topic.

Week VII. Lesson 19

Use this period to examine and discuss the paragraph from the previous class. Students will make revisions and produce a final copy by the end of this class period.

Week VII. Lesson 20

This period is to be used for an in-class writing assignment for evaluation purposes. Have students use the computer to compose, revise, SAVE and PRINT a paragraph of their choice. Have a number of topics available for students who may not have a topic in mind.

Week VII. Lesson 21

Now that students have spent five weeks on paragraph writing, they are ready to write longer compositions. This lecture will be spent on easy writing. It would be helpful here to have several good essays which can be displayed on a large monitor and discussed by the entire class. Opening paragraphs, the body of the text, and closing paragraphs should be closely examined. Discuss the idea of transition. Examine language usage, coherence, and unity of the written composition. Instruct students to come to the next writing session with an essay topic in mind.

Week VIII. Lesson 22

During this class; students will engage in a collaborative writing exercise. Have each student select a working partner. Divide the class time equally to insure that each student gets time to discuss his/her topic. As one student talks about his/her topic, the other will enter ideas on the computer. Since this is a brain-storming exercise, advise students to enter Trying to write complete only key words and phrases. sentences will be restricted at this stage. Sharing ideas may trigger other ideas, and a partner may make suggestions as well. After 25 minutes have the first student SAVE and PRINT his/her list of ideas. Have students switch roles and follow the same procedure. Each student will now be equipped with a list of ideas for a short essay.

Week VIII. Lesson 23

During this session, each student will decide which ideas are relevant to the topic. The student will then arrange and build these ideas into an essay of about 200 words. At the end of this period, each student will save and print the rough draft which can be taken away and studied for revision purposes.

Week VIII. Lesson 24

During this session, each student will revise the essay and print a copy at the end of class.

Week IX. Lesson 25

During the first thirty minutes of this session, the student will sit with a writing partner. Each student will examine his/her partner's paper and suggest possible changes. The final twenty minutes of this period will be devoted to making final revisions and printing the final copy for submission.

Week IX. Lesson 26.

This lecture will deal with resume writing. Discuss the types of information to be included in a resume and the format to be followed. It would be helpful to have some sample resumes to share with the class. Discuss the importance of considering one's audience here. Encourage the use of strong active verbs to present a picture of competence and efficiency.

Week IX. Lesson 27

During this session, each student will organize the personal data for a resume and enter the resume on the computer. The instructor will be available to give assistance where needed. A rough draft of the resume will be printed at the end of class and taken away to be studied for revision purposes.

Week X. Lesson 28

During this lesson, the student will make revisions to the resume and print a final copy for submission.

Week X. Lesson 29

Since the letter of application is included with the resume when one applies for a job, this would be a good place to introduce letter writing. This period will be spent discussing both business and friendly letters. Discuss the types of information to be contained in each and the importance of considering one's audience when one writes letters. The letter of application will be examined closely. Stress the fact that information must be relevant and accurate in this type of letter. Since the resume lists all specific facts, the covering

letter may be brief but must be very carefully written. The potential employer forms a first impression when he/she reads the covering letter. If he/she is not impressed, the resume may not be read at all.

Week X. Lesson 30

During this session, each student will write a rough draft of a letter of application and save it on his/her personal disk. Have the student print the rough draft and take it home to be studied for revision purposes.

Week XI. Lesson 31

During this class, students will revise, examine, and further revise the letter of application. At the end of the period, each student will print and submit his/her letter.

Week XI. Lesson 32

Return the letters, together with suggestions for revision to the students. Have students spend this class time revising and producing a final copy. This copy will be submitted for evaluation.

Week XI. Lesson 33

This lecture will deal with two other types of business letters - the letter of inquiry and the letter of complaint. Use the large monitor to display samples of both good and poor correspondence. Lead the group in a discussion of each type of letter. Point out the use of clear, direct, and simple language.

Week XII. Lesson 34

Have the students write either a letter of inquiry or a letter of complaint. Provide the students with situations which would require such a letter. Provide names and addresses for the student. Have each student print a rough draft to be submitted at the end of the Bession.

Week XII. Lesson 35

Return corrected letters to the students. Have them spend this class period revising and producing a final draft to be submitted for evaluation.

Week XII. Lesson 36

This period will be used to write and revise a friendly letter. Point out to the student how the language used

will be different here because of the different audience being addressed. Encourage students to make the letter light and lively but informative. Have each student print a rough draft of his/her letter and take it away to be revised.

Week XIII. Lesson 37

During this period, each student will revise and print a final copy of his/her friendly letter.

Week XIII. Lesson 38

This lecture will deal with the following points:

- a) what a memo is,
- b) the types of information it should contain,
- c) situations calling for a memo,
- d) the similarities and differences between a memo and a business letter, and
- e) the necessity for clarity and precision.

 Throughout this lesson, samples of memos will be displayed on the large monitor and discussed with the students.

Week XIII. Lesson 39

Provide students with a list of situations which might require a memo. Have students:

- a) gelect a situation,
- b) write a memo,
- c) exchange writing with a partner for proof reading and editing.
- d) revise memo, and
- e) print and submit memo at the end of the session.

Week XIV. Lesson 40

The next five lessons will be spent on report writing. Since many job situations require that reports be submitted periodically, this is a very important skill to acquire. This lecture will deal with:

- a) what a report is,
- b) kinds of information contained in a reports
- c) situations calling for a report,
- d) the necessity for clarity and precision, and
- e) the importance of knowing the audience to be addressed.

Have sample reports available for the students to examine and discuss.

Week XIV. Lesson 41.

Students will spend this class period in the library researching information for a short report.

Week XIV Lesson 42.

Have students use the information as gathered to compile a short report. Students will print a copy at the end of this period. The report will be taken and studied for revision purposes.

Week XV. Lesson 43.

Have students make revisions to the report and print a copy for further revision.

Week XV. Lesson 44.

During this period the report will be shared with teachers and peers. Students will note suggestions for further revisions.

Week XV. Lesson 45

Have students make final revisions to the report, print it, and submit it for evaluation purposes.

Week XVI. Lesson 46

This lecture will deal with aspects of creative writing as being:

- a) sincerity,
- b) emotion,
- c) originality, and
- d) re-creation of an experience.

View and discuss some samples of creative writing. Discuss the use of figurative language and the avoidance of cliches.

Week XVI. Lesson 47

Have the students produce a short essay while keeping in mind the aspects of creative writing. Instruct the students to use figurative language and to avoid cliches. Have students print their essays at the end of class and take them home to work on revisions.

^ Week XVI. Lesson 48

This period will be spent in revising and producing a final copy of the essay to be submitted at the end of class.

Summary

Microcomputers offer important advantages to students at all stages of the writing process. The computer

encourages students to produce text and then provides.

them quick help in shaping, formatting, and polishing
their work.

In this technological society, the introduction of the computer also provides the career-oriented student with an additional skill to be used in the work place. Writing instructors and students who explore the potential of this new technology will find the experience to be most rewarding.

REFERENCES

- Bean, J.C. (1983). Computerized word-processing as an aid to revision. College Composition and Communication, 34, 146-148.
- Bitter, G.G., & Camuse, R.A. (1984). <u>Using a microcomputer in the classroom</u>. Reston, Virgina: Reston.
- Bruce, B., Michaels, S. & Watson Gegeo, K. (1985) . How computers can change the writing process. Language Arts, 62, 143-149.
- Catano, J.V. (1985). Computer-based writing: Navigating the fluid text. College Composition and Communication, 36, 309-315.
- Cohen, S. (1985). Why computers in remedial language arts? The Computing Teacher, 12 (9), 46-47.
- Collier, R.M. (1983a). The effects of a computer-based text editor on the creativity and writing skills of community college composition students: A pilot project. (Reproduction Service No. CS 208 425, ERIC Document Ed 246 430).

Collier, R.M. (1983b). The word processor and revision strategies. College Composition and Communication, 34, 149-155.

* V

- Crist, W. (1984). Teaching writing through word processing and the rhetoric of composition. Computers in the Schools, 1 (4), 77-82.
- Daiute, C. (1985). Issues in using computers to socialize the writing process. Educational Communication and Technology, 30 (1), 41-50.
- Dudley-Marling, C.C. (1985). Microcomputers, reading, and writing: Alternatives to drill and practice. The Reading Teachers, 38, 388-391.
- Evans, P., Mickelson, N. & Smith N.C. (1984). Computerassisted instruction in college composition. The Alberta Journal of Educational Research, 30, 311-319.
- Fisher, G. (1983). Word processing will it make all kids love to write? Instructor, 92, 87-88.

- Fluegelman, A. & Hewes, J.J. (1983). Writing in the computer age. New York: Anchor Books.
- Gelb, I.J. (1969). A study of writing. Chicago: The University of Chicago ess.
- Green, J. (1984). Computers, kids, and writing.

 <u>Learning</u>, 13, 12.
- Gula, R. (1983). Beyond the typewriter: an English teacher looks at word processing. <u>Independent Schools</u>, 42 (3), 44-46.
- Kiefer, K.E. & Smith, C.R. (1983). Textual analysis with computers: Tests of Bell Laboratory's computer software. Research in the Teaching of English, 17, 201-214.
- Levin, R.L. (1984). Computer-assited writing. New Directions for Community Colleges, 47, 41-49.
- Loheyde, R. (1984). Computer use in the teaching of composition: Considerations for teachers of writing.

 Computers in the Schools, 1 (2), 81-85.

Madigan, C. (1984). The tools that shape us: Composing by hand vs. composing by machine. English Education, 16, 143-149.

Myers, P. (1984). Using word processing in writing development. <u>ECCO Newsletter</u>, 5 (1), 27-28.

Myers, P. (1986). The application of the computer to writing. inkshed, 5 (1), 1-3.

Newman, J.M. (1984). Language learning and computers. Language Arts, 61, 494-497.

"O'Brien, P. (1984). Using microcomputers in the writing class. The Computing Teacher, 11 (9), 20-21.

Rodrigues, D. (1985). Computers and basic writers.

College Composition and Communication, 36, 336-339.

Schwartz, H.J. (1982). Monsters and mentors: Computer applications for humanistic education. College English, 44, 141-152.

- Schwartz, H.J. (1984). Teaching writing with computer aids. College English, 46, 239-247.
- Schwartz, L. (1983). Teaching writing in the age of the word processor and personal computers. Educational Technology, 23 (6), 33-35.
- Schwartz, H. (1982). Computers and the teaching of writing. Educational Technology, 22 (11), 27-29.
- Smye, R. (1984). Computer innovations for teaching.
 the writing process. English Quarterly, 17 (2),
 27-37.
- Southwell, M. (1982). Using computer-assisted instruction for developmental writing. AEDS Journal, 15, 80-91.
- Tchudi, S. & Tchudi, S. (1984). The young writer's handbook. New York: Charles Scribner's Sons.
- Tebeaux, E. (1985). Redesigning professional writing courses to meet the communication needs of writers in business and industry. Callege Composition and Communication, 36, 419-427.

- Vacc, N.N. (1984). Computers in adult education. Life.

 Long Learning, 7 (6), 26-28.
- Varsava, J. (1986). Cal in English 1000 and 1001:

 State of the project report. Unpublished study paper,

 Memorial University of Newfoundland, St. John's.
- Walpole, P.O. & Hess, G. (1985, May). Writing in the computer literacy class. Computers in Education, 19-21.
- Watt, D. (1983). Word processors and writing.

 Independent School, 42 (3), 41-43.
- West, W.W., Bailey, S.D. & Wood, B.L. (1981).

 Developing writing skills (3rd, ed.). Scarborough,

 Ontario: Prentice-Hall.
- Wheeler, F. (1985). Can word processing help the "writing process? Learning, 13, 54-62.
- Withey, M. (1983). The computer and writing. English Journal, 72 (7), 24-31.
- Wreach, W. (1983). Computers and composition instruction:
 An update. College English: 45, 794-799.

SUGGESTED READINGS

- Adams, C. (1985, November). Composing with computers?

 Computers in Education, 18-20.
- Aldrich, P.G. (1982). Adult writers: Some research for ineffective writing on the job. College Composition and Communication, 33, 284-287.
 - Amoroso, H.C., Jr. (1984). Some aspects of program planning in adult education. The Review of Education, 10, 322-329.
 - Arms, V. (1983). Creating and recreating. College Composition and Communication, 34, 355-358.
 - Arms, V.M. (1984). A dyslexic can compose on a computer.

 Educational Technology, 24, 39-41.
 - Auten, A. (1984). Computers in English: How and why. English Journal, 73 (1), 54-56.

- Bartlett, J. (1980). Familiar quotations (15th ed). Toronto: Little, Brown.
- Bataille, R.R. (1982). Writing in the world of work:

 What our graduates report. College Composition and
 Communication, 33, 276-280.
- Bostock, S. & Seifert, R. (1983). Introducing a microcomputer into adult education classes. Adult Education, 55, 351-355.
- Bradley, V.N. (1982). Improving students' writing with microcomputers. Language Arts, 59, 732-743.
- Brown, P.D. (1984). English and the computer. The English Ouarterly, 16 (14), 55-64.
- Burns, H.L. & Culp, G.H. (1980). Stimulating invention in English composition through computer-assisted instruction. Educational Technology, 22 (8), 5-10.

- Buttedahl, P.G. (1983). Communications technology and adult education: Can participation be encouraged?

 Life Long Learning, 6 (10), 4-6.
- Byerly, G.A. (1978). CAI in college English. Computers and the Humanities, 12, 281-285.
- Caldwell, R.M., (1984). Evaluating microcomputer software in the English language arts. English Education, 16, 14-21.
- Campbell, D.F. & Ballenger, W.L. (1984). The future of microcomputers in community colleges. New Directions for Community Colleges, 47, 101-107.
- Chomsky, C. (1984). Finding the best language arts software. Classroom Computer Learning, 4, 61-63.
- Daiute, C.A. (1983). The computer as stylus and audience.

 College Composition and Communication, 34, 134-145.
- Danielson, W.A. (1985). The writer and the computer.

 Computers and the Humanities, 19,85-88

- Davenport, J. & Davenport, J.H. (1985). Andragogicalpedagogical orientations of adult learners: Research
 results and practice recommendations. Life Long
 Learning, 9 (1) 6-8.
- Dellow, D.A. & Poole, L. H. (1984). The microcomputer revolution and its impact on community colleges. New Directions for Community Colleges, 47, 5-11.
- Elbow, P. (1981). Writing without power. New York:
 Oxford University Press.
- Erdman, J.I. (1984). Teaching writing as a potentially liberating activity. Life Long Learning, 8, (3), 4÷7.
- Fahy, P.J. (1984). Learning about computerized instruction with adults: One school's trials, errors, and successes. Educational Technology, 24 (7), 11-16.
- Haas, C., Hayes, J.R. (1986). What did I just say?

 Reading problems in writing with the machines. Research

 in the Teaching of English, 20, 22-35.
- Hall, D. (1973). Writing well. Boston: Little, Brown.

- Harris, J. (1985). Student writers and word processing:

 A preliminary evaluation. College Composition and

 Communication, 36, 323-330.
- Harty, K.J. (1985). Strategies for business and technical writing (2nd ed.). Toronto: Harcourt Brace Jovanovich.
- Heermann, B. (1984). Computer-assisted adult learning and the community college response. New Directions for Community Colleges, 47, 81-87.
- . Heffernan, J.A.W. & Lincoln, J.E. (1982). Writing: A college handbook. New York: W. W. Norton.
 - Hertz, R.M. (1983). Problems of computer-assisted instruction in composition. The Computing Teacher, 11 (2), 62-64.
 - Imel, S. (1983). The microcomputer: A tool for adult education. Adult Literacy and P-sic Education, Z, 109-115.

- Jacobs, M.A. (ed). (1985). The directory of Canadian schools. Montreal: Prince-Patterson.
- Klieman, G.M. (1984). Brave new schools: How computers
 can change education. Reston, Virginia: Reston.
- Knappe, A. (1984, October). Word Processing in the. classroom. Computers in Education, 10-11.
- Rotler, L. & Anandam, K. (1983). A partnership of teacher and computer in teaching writing. College Composition and Communication, 43, 361-367.
- Kraska, M.F. (1985). Communication skills for trade and industry. Cincinnati: South-Western.
- Lake, D. (1985). Beyond word processing. Classroom
 Computer Learning, 6, 37-38.
- Lanese, L.D. (1983). Applying principles of learning to adult training programs. Educational Technology, 23 (3), 15-17.

- Larsen, R.B. (1984). The impact of computers on composition: A polemic. Educational Technology, 24
- Lawson, K.H. (1985). The problem of defining adult education as an area of research. Adult Education Ouarterly, 36, 39-43.
- Levinson, L. (1971). <u>Bartlett's unfamiliar quotations</u>. Chicago: Cowles Book.
- Lewis, R. & Tagg, E.D. (Eds.). (1981). Computers in Education. New York: North-Holland.
- Long, H.B. (1983). Adult and continuing education:

 Responding to change. New York: Teachers College

 Press.
- Lyons, J. (1986). Writing fundamentals (2nd ed.).

 Scarborough, Ontario: Prentice-Hall.
- Maddison, A (1982). Microcomputers in the Classroom.

 London: Hodder and Stoughton.

- Marshall, G.R. (1984, October). Word Processing: Teaching approaches. <u>Computers in Education</u>, 22-26.
- McKenzie, J. (1984). Accordion writing Expository composition with the word processor. English Journal, 73 (5), 56-58.
- McMaster, R.J. (1965). The craft of writing (2nd, ed.).

 Don Mills: Longmans.
- McWilliams, P.A. (1983). The word processing book (5th ed.). Toronto: Random House.
- Miller, D.C. (1970). Handbook of research design and social measurement (2nd ed.). New York: David McKay Company.
- Mountain, L. (1984). Wanted: Software by English teachers. English Journal, 73 (5), 57-59.
- Myers, P. (1985, June). Computers and English: Bigh schools and colleges. Computers in Education, 10-12.
- Newman, J.M. (1984). Online: Reading, writing and Computers, Language Arts, 61, 758-763.

- Palmer, A., Dowd, T. & James, K. (1984). Changing teacher and student attitudes through word processing. The Computing Teacher, 11 (9),45-47.
- Papert, S. (1980). Mindstorms. New York: Basic Books.
- Pearce, C.G., Figgins, R. & Golen, S.P. (1984).

 Principles of business communication. Toronto: John
 Wiley & Sons.
- Pollitt, A.H. (1984). Warning to the wonders of the word processor: An English teacher's introduction to the computer. The Computing Teacher, 11 (9), 48-49.
- Rachal, J.R. (1984). The computer in the A.B.E. and G.E.D. classroom: A review of the literature. Adult Education Quarterly, 35, 86-95.
- Rodrigues, D. (1985). Using computers in the language arts curriculum. Curriculum Review, 24, 25-28.
- Rodrigues, R.J. (1984). The computer-based writing program from load to print. English Journal, 73 (1), 27-30.

- Rodrigues, R.J. & Rodrigues, D.W. (1984). Computerbased invention: Its place and potential, College Composition and Communication, 35, 78-87.
- Rosen, R.C. (1984). Can computers teaching writing?

 The Review of Education, 10, 290-92.
- Schlee, A. (1982). Some problems of a creative writing class. Adult Education, 55, 43-49.
- Slaninka, 8. (1983). Writing as a learning processImplications for the adult educator. Life Long Learning,
 6 (7), 15-17. (3)
- Solmon, L.C. & Gordon, J.J. (1981) The characteristics and needs of adults in postsecondary education.

 Lexington, Mass: Lexington Books.
- Spille, H.A., Galloway, S.W. & Stewart, D.W. (1985).

 How to evaluate courseware designed for use in education or training programs for adult learners. Educational Technology, 25, (3), 40-42.

- Stultz, R.A. (1984). Writing and publishing on your microcomputer. Plano, Texas: Wordware Publishing.
- Sudol, R.A. (1985). Applied word processing: Notes on authority, responsibility, and revision in a workshop model. College Composition and Communication, 36, 331-335.
- Sullivan, D.M. (1984). Computers in adult education.

 Adult Education, 56, 312-316.
- Sullivan, W. & Core, G. (1983). Writing from the inside.

 New York: W.W. Norton.
- Wangberg, E.G. (1986). An interactive, language experience based on the microcomputer approach to reduce adult illiteracy. Life Long Learning, 9 (5), 8-12.
- Wilson, John. (1980). Possibilities for adult education in the 1980's. Adult Education, 53, 226-231.

Wresch, W. (1982). Computers in English class: Finally beyond grammar and spelling drills. College English, 44, 483-490.

Womble, G.G. (1984). Do word processors work in the English classroom? The Education Digest, 49, 40-42.

Yonge, G.D. (1985). Andragogy and pedagogy: .Two ways of accompaniment. Adult Education Quarterly, 35, 160-167.

Appendix A: Survey Instrument

Dear Administrator:

I am a masters candidate in Curriculum and Instruction at Memorial University of Newfoundland. This questionnaire is an attempt to survey adult education instructors across Canada to determine how computers are presently being used in the area of writing. It is hoped that the information collected can be used as a basis for a thesis.

I would appreciate it if you would distribute the enclosed questionnaire to English instructors at either the Adult Basic Educational level or the Post Secondary level (excluding Business Education Programs).

An early response would be appreciated.

Sincerely,

Joan Marche

al⁻

March 10, 1986

, Dear Colleague:

The attached questionnaire is an attempt to survey adult education across Canada to determine how computers are presently being used in the area of writing. I hope to be able to use the information collected as a basis for a thesis. Please complete Section I and EITHER Section II (if a computer is being use) OR Section III (if a computer is not being used).

Any additional comments you wish to make are welcomed. Thank you for your participation in this survey. An early response would be appreciated.

Sincerely,

Joan Marche

hd

Sect:	ion 1	-	*	3					
Please check the appropriate response.									
1.	a) b) c)	of institution: Community College Vocational Training Junior College Other	- Centre						
2.	a) b) ·	of class (es): fewer than 15 15-20 more than 20		Please specify					
3.	a) b) c)	l taught: Adult Basic Educati Vocational Post-secondary Other	on (8–12)	[] [] [] Please specify					
4.	a) b)	liarity with computed I have completed for I consider myself and I have very little I have no familiari	rmal_course elf-taught familiarity	with computers					
5.	a) b) / c) d) e)	of computer used: Apple Commodore IBM Radio Shack/tandy Texas Instruments Other							
•			Please spe	ecify					
6.	The sale of the sa	Software being used Word processing Drill and Practice Tutorial Enrichment Diagnostic Other	is mainly: [] [] [] [] [] []	•					

Please specify

Section II

If you are using or have ever used a computer to teach writing to adults, please complete this section. Check the response which best expresses your opinion.

SA= Strongly Agree A= Agree D= Disagree SD= Strongly Disagree

	Statement		SA	A	ַם <u>.</u>	SD
1.	The computer is a useful tool for teaching writing.	,	-, -, .	1	•	.∵
2.	The use of the computer improves the student's writing.				· ·	•/
3.	Adult students are generally apprehensive when first exposed to writing on the computer.					
4.	After the initial introduction, students generally find the process enjoyable and rewarding.	•			-7	
5.	The computer is considered a complement to and not a substitute for a teacher.	``.	-	,		
6.	The ease with which revision can be done allows for successive evaluation of students, work.	•				
7.	The availability of appropriate software is a problem when teaching writing to adults.			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · ·

On	the aver-	age, how m	any hour	в per we	ek đoes	each st
sper a)	nd at the	terminal?		•		
b)	4-6	ij		,	·.	•
c) d)	7-9 other		1		•	
•		Please	specify _	,		
The a)	computer letter	is being t	used to t	each:		
b) .	paragra	ph writing	ij	ر المراجع الم		•
c) d)	essay w	riting .				
			Please	specify		
A w	orkable	ratio beti	veen stud	lents and	number	of comp
	ld be: 3-1	[]	, ,			
b)	5-1 5-1	ij				
ω,		***	-			
c)	7-1		•			
-	7-1 other	. []				
c)	7-1		specify			<u>. </u>
c) d)	7-1 other	. () Please ions or s	uggestio	ns for u	sing the	e comput
c) d)	7-1 other	. [] Please	uggestio	ns for u	sing the	e comput
c) d)	7-1 other	. () Please ions or s	uggestio	ns for u	sing the	e comput
c) d)	7-1 other	. () Please ions or s	uggestio	ns for u	sing the	e comput
c) d)	7-1 other	. () Please ions or s	uggestio	ns for u	sing the	e comput
Rec adú	other ommendat	Please ions or s g programs	uggestio	*	>	
Rec adú.	other ommendat lt writing	Please ions or s g programs	uggestio	add any	comments	about t
Recadú:	other ommendat lt writin ase use to sed in th your co	Please ions or s g programs the space to ls question	elow to	add any	comments i matter	about t
Recadú:	other ommendat lt writin ase use to sed in th your co	Please ions or s g programs the space h	elow to	add any	comments i matter	about t
Recadú:	other ommendat lt writin ase use to sed in th your co	Please ions or s g programs the space to ls question	elow to	add any r related comments	comments i matter	about t
Recadú:	other ommendat lt writin ase use to sed in th your co	Please ions or s g programs the space to ls question	elow to	add any r related comments	comments i matter	about t

Sect	400	TTT
20011		

If you are not using a computer to teach writing, please complete this section. Check the response which best expresses you opinion.

SA= Strongly Agree A= Agree D= Disagree SD= Strongly Disagree

<u></u>	Statement	S	A	A	D	SD
_	The computer could be a useful tool for teaching writing to adults.		, 4. ,	,	-	
	I would use a computer for this purpose if one were available.		•			
	The general use of the computer to teach writing to adults will be realized in the next five years.	6			4	٠.
	In your opinion, why is the computer program? a) Lack of funds [] b) Lack of staff training [] c) Lack of suitable software [] d) Resistance of faculty [] e) Resistance of administration [] f) Other []		bei	.ng	used	in y
	Pl	lease	вре	eci	fy _	
	Please use the space below to add an raised in this questionnaire or rela for your co-operation. Your commentation research project.	ted r	natt	er:	s. T	hank/
	7	 	<u> </u>			
	•	:			•	•
	•					
				,		
	<u> </u>				 .	

Appendix B: Additional Comments

ADDITIONAL CONNENTS FROM NON-USERS

Please use space below to add any comments about topics raised in this questionnaire or related matters. Thank you for your co-operation. Your comments are a vital part of this research project.

- The computer would be especially valuable in encouraging self-editing.
- teaching that too much time would be spent on learning how to use the computer than time on writing After all, the time alloted to go from grade of the conjugation. I would use a computer but only nominally.
- I am planning to incorporate computers into the English Communication program.
- I never realized that the computer could be used to teach writing.

- We have never considered the use of the computer in our reading/writing program, largely because the number of students would not justify the cost, nor have we been convinced of the value of the software available.
- User friendly microcomputers are at present too expensive for general use.
- I would suggest that post-secondary students who are not taught to compose with computer assistance will be improperly prepared for employment by most large companies.
- Our school is planning to implement computer-assisted training within the next two years.
- We are just now talking and planning our way into this field. Some staff members are taking classes in preparation for the big day!

- I have some students who use a computer to do their essays and the quality of their work is much better.

 Therefore they achieve a higher grade. The computer is a positive training aid and I hope to make more use of the computers in our school in the future.
- The computer could be a useful tool, but not the only tool for teaching writing. The human element is important when dealing with the skills of writing, reading and speaking.
- I believe that as computers become more user friendly, they will become much more widely used by writing instructors.
- The problem appears to be that Humanities faculty just don't see the computer as being relevant to their interests or their jobs. So they ignore it.

 There may well be some computer phobia involved.
- Budget lack of funds is the problem as well as leadership by administration to give priority to such teaching tools.

- Computer programs could be used for such things as drill-and-practice of grammar skills, or sentence structuring, but the student would need adequate time to devote to these activities.
 - Computer assisted instruction is valid but is time consuming for many students. Not enough software aimed at ABE students at basic literary level. We are expecting two C-64 computers within the next few months. I may have more to say at that time.
- I would be interested in learning more about the use of the computer in teaching composition. I've read several favourable reports on its use in composition, but at this point I know very little about it.
- Best of luck with you MA studiest.
- found it very useful for preparing class materials etc. Our college is planning a remedial learning center (using computers), but not all staff members feel the computers will be valuable aids.

I have observed several classes where the computer was in use. In most cases it was being used as an "excuse" for not teaching. Thought processes and organization which are the most important components of writing have to be taught/learned through discussion and example. Software for some of the mechanics may be useful, however.

We are hoping to have a small computer writing lab in place by January 1987 to assist students.

I have been asked along with another instructor to look into the possibility of using computers in the English programme at Niagara College. My interest is in using the computer as an aid in our letter writing course for business students. Ray is considering the use of computer pre-writing software for our basic writing (Freshman English) courses. Currently we are considering the Sheridan College Prewriter programme, and the Writer's Workbench for editing purposes. I would appreciate receiving a copy of your survey findings if you will be making them available.

- I feel word processing would enhance student interest in writing.
- We obtained 7 Rainbows to be used in the classroom but the faculty voted to give them up!
- I would like to see more inservice training on computers. Since I have not had any experience I feel a little hesitant to begin.
- I've referred appropriate Software to Administration but was told high cost of such packages as opposed to cost of traditional English textbooks is a negative factor. Key reasons for non-use are (1) cost (2) logistics of scheduling (3) traditional view of English lecture type classes.
- Good luck with your work!
- The logistics involved in computer taught writing are too horrendous to contemplate here. We have 20+

sections @ 27 bodies in the fall semester! Unless we had a minimum of 8 rooms with at least 15 consoles, we couldn't get started!

- The full potential of the computer to adult education will only be realized when the necessary hardware and software are put in place.
- I am extremely enthusiastic about the possibilities of using computers in teaching writing.

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS PROM COMPUTER USERS

Recommendations or suggestions for using the computer in adult writing programs.

- The computer should be used as early as possible in communication courses. Text analysis program are also useful.
- I don't know about other kinds of writing, but I know about journalism. Computers are essential and should be used exclusively.
- Students need basic introductory courses in keyboarding to help cut "typing" time.
- Introduction to word processing should precede writing instruction: students should be familiar with the processing system, so they can concentrate on editing.
- We use the computer to teach a unit on word processing to our students. We then insist that some assignments are done on the word processor throughout the term. We attempt to overcome their insecurity about approaching computers.

- We use the computer in the writing clinic. We do not find drill and practice programs helpful.

 Essentially, we find the use of a word processor, combined with tutoring, to be most effective in helping students with a variety of writing problems.
- Skill and care must be used in introducing adults to computers. I try to help them understand the machine and begin doing something useful and impressive in the first hour. Refinements can come later.
- Students in basic courses in writing would benefit greatly if they had access to a word processor during all stages of writing.
- computers enter into all stages of composing process:
 in the prewriting stage in the form of dialogues
 perhaps or brainstorming; in writing stage in form
 of word processing; in revising stage as editor
 and critic in form of computer assisted editing.

- Use a simple word processing program and ensure that the instructor is available at the beginning to avoid frustration.
- I-have a couple of articles out on writing and teaching writing with computers: CC, 34 (May, 1983), 149-55; ERIC microfile: ED 246 430; and a third in Computers and Composition: Selected Papers ... (April 1984), pp 67-93 (published in Minneapolis). L have noted some suggestions in those articles that you might find helpful.

Please use the space below to add any comments about topics raised in this questionnaire or related matters. Thank you for your co-operation. Your comments are a vital part of this research project.

 We are currently teaching approximately 6,000 students to generate text using word processing. (Seneca College).

- the word processor in order to be motivated to use a computer in his own time. Some students can edit better when using a computer. I see little value in using W.P's to teach writing until computers are cheaper. The Toshiba portable computer, available in Australia, but not here, is the type of machine that holds promise for the future.
- I think a real selling job must be done with many of the older and more traditional instructors before the computer will be used successfully in many Adult Basic Education classes.
 - I have used word processing only as an optional method of transcription. It would require 1:1 ratio of computer to students to use this in the classroom, and the lack of keyboard skills on the part of most students is a disadvantage. "Writer's Workbench" is a fairly sophisticated editing program put out by Bell Laboratories, and students find it quite beneficial.

- The special editing functions mean more pride with and attention to the final drafts of projects. Out of 120 students in my classes only 3 are not enjoying computers.
- Good luck! Keep me posted on the results of your research! Ron Adams South East Community College.
- I would be most interested in a copy (or abstract) of your research proposal and, of course, the results. Cariboo College just hosted a successful inter-provincial conference on computers and Language Arts. We intend to host an international convention next year.
- Good luck with your thesis work!
- I'm afraid that you have caught me just two weeks into introducing word processing to my students.

 Because I am a "convert", however, I have high hopes that my students will respond similarly!

- One of the significant values of the computer is that it increases student confidence. Since mistakes are easily corrected, students worry less about making mistakes and can concentrate on the writing process.
 - Some kind of central source of information regarding software available to teachers is urgently needed.
 - Using a word processor is great because students get a nice, clean typed copy of what they have written - they seem to like it better than writing their stories out by hand.
- I am working on my masters' as well. Your topic sounds very interesting. Good luck! (Karen Ridley)
- Pirst, this is an excellent idea. Can we improve on it by getting together a data exchange (using modems) of the survey respondents? I know some programs must be doing great things, but I don't know about who or where they are.



